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What We Do

Wireless access to Internet — anytime, anywhere
Option is a global, innovative leader in wireless technology.
Our wireless mobile broadband products are used worldwide
by telecom operators, IT distributors, and laptop and consumer
electronics manufacturers. They provide end-users with easy
access to information — anywhere and anytime.
From USB modems to applications
Option designs, develops, and manufactures wireless technology
solutions. These include:
-- USB modems: the iCON® range offers wireless
access to the Internet via a USB device and can
be connected to any laptop or desktop PC

Message to our Shareholders

For mobile telecom operators and consumer electronics
manufacturers
Our products are used by numerous mobile telecom operators,
IT distributors, laptop manufacturers, and consumer electronics
manufacturers around the globe. Option mobile broadband devices
are marketed by more than 100 companies in virtually every region.
Our solutions provide businesses and consumers with high quality
wireless broadband access to the Internet — anytime, anywhere. An
overview:
-- Mobile telecom operators: Airtel, AT&T, O2, Orange Group,
Telenor, T-Mobile Group, Virgin Mobile, Vodafone Group
-- IT distributors: Brightpoint, Hugh Symons, Mobile World
Communications, Nova Media, USI
-- Laptop and consumer electronics manufacturers: Acer, Asus,
Compal, Fujitsu Siemens Computers, Samsung, Sony
Dedicated to innovative solutions

-- Data cards: the Globetrotter® data cards enable
seamless connection to the wireless mobile
network via a PCMCIA or Express card slot
attached to a PC or notebook

-- Embedded modules: the GTM portfolio consists
of modules for wireless mobile network connection
that can be integrated into PCs, Mobile Internet
Devices (MIDs), laptops, and consumer electronics devices

-- Wireless routers: the Globesurfer® routers make
it possible to share Internet with others via a
wireless network or LAN access

-- Software: the Globetrotter® connection software supports
both front and back-end management for wireless mobile
communication devices

Every one of our products is designed in a spirit of innovation to
best address emerging user needs. Today, Option continues to
be a pioneer in wireless data communications. For more than
two decades, we have earned our solid reputation for designing
products that have transformed wireless communication
everywhere. Since our inception in 1986, we have developed no
less than 22 world firsts in wireless Internet access.
Worldwide presence
Option is headquartered in Leuven, Belgium, with research
centers in both Leuven and Düsseldorf, Germany. We also
have a development team in Augsburg, Germany, as well as a
production, engineering, and logistics facility in Cork, Ireland. We
also collaborate with an outsourcing partner that runs an Optiondedicated manufacturing facility in China. In addition, we have
sales offices in Europe, the USA, Asia, and Australia.

2008 — a year that changed the mobile communications industry

Further aligning our organization to reality

The past year has — once again — been a very difficult one for
Option. Although the year started with new product designs and
customer wins overall progress came to a sudden halt in the final
quarter.

In the past year, we have continued aligning our organization to
the new market reality. We reinforced our Management Team with
a Chief Operating Officer at the end of last year. He focuses on
Option’s day-to-day activities, steering our company safely through
challenging times. This will allow me to fully focus on developing
and fine-tuning our long-term strategy.
Early in 2009 we also welcomed a new Vice President Marketing.
He will help us further refine our market strategy and seize new
opportunities. In addition, two new independent directors joined the
Board, adding valued expertise.
In the months and quarters to come, we continue to explore further
streamlining of our organization.

USB devices changed the face of the industry
The unexpected, rapid success of USB devices for wireless Internet
connection has changed the face of our industry significantly.
USB modems have now taken up approximately 70 percent of the
market. This was mainly at the expense of data cards, in which
we have built — and continue to hold — a leading position. At
the same time, the market also shifted from a predominantly B2B
environment to a more B2C-oriented market place.
Option was able to quickly adapt to this new market and expanded
its product offering with USB devices for B2B as well as B2C
customers. However, the USB market proved to be a tough
environment. We faced fierce competition from mainly Asian
manufacturers, who slashed prices order to gain market share.
Economic downturn puts pressure on prices
On top of that, the economic downturn struck hard and
unexpectedly. It affected companies all over the world, in virtually
all sectors. Option was no exception. Market demand evolved
towards the low-end, putting severe pressure on prices. Customers
still want top-quality products, but they no longer want to pay a
reasonable markup for innovative, high-end product features.
The combination of the market changes and the economic
downturn impacted Option’s 2008 performance.
In spite of a record 3.4 million product shipments, total revenues
decreased by 11 percent. They changed from EUR 301.5 million in
2007 to EUR 268.1 million by the end of 2008. Consequently, net
result decreased to EUR - 19 million.

Further reducing our time-to-market
The trend towards consumerism in our market also means we have
to adapt our R&D tactics. In a B2C environment, products generally
have a more limited market lifetime. Consumers expect new
products more quickly, even when it comes to devices for wireless
Internet connection. Reducing our time-to-market will become even
more crucial as it enables us to launch new products more quickly
and gain a head start over the competition.
Preparing the blockbuster products of the future
Market driven R&D remains at the forefront of our business
activities. Even in times of economic downturn, it is important to
keep our eyes on the future and look for tomorrow’s opportunities.
This past year we have already taken a first step in that regard
with the introduction of our uCAN® software platform. We started
researching and developing this software platform in 2008 and
were able to officially launch it early in 2009. This ‘PC on a stick’
enables users to store and access their own applications, files,
and content as well as connect to the Internet via a USB device
that can be plugged in into any PC. This application can serve as a
differentiator for telecom operators to stimulate customer loyalty.

-- Applications: the uCAN® software platform enables to store
key programs and data on a USB device for use on any PC or
notebook
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Message to our Shareholders

Board of Directors

Balanced mix of competencies

We have also renewed our partnership with Intel for the
development of Mobile Internet Devices (MIDs), one of the
most promising products for the near future. In addition, we
reinforced our historical strategic partnership with Qualcomm and
engaged in a new partnership with ICERA to proceed with further
miniaturization of wireless communication technologies. This has
already resulted in the development of the world’s smallest Internet
connection module. This is an achievement that will support the
development of the next generation of MIDs.
In addition, we acquired M4S as an investment for the long term.
M4S is a spin-off of IMEC, a world-renowned research center in
electronics. They are researching and developing the 4G radiofrequency (RF) design for the next generation of mobile technology.
This acquisition will help us build a leading position in the market
of 4G embedded wireless devices.
Option has experienced difficult times before. We managed to
come through by adapting our business model to new market
situations.
The past year, we have already made a number of crucial decisions
to face these challenging times and we will continue to make them
in the months to come. The Board and I firmly believe that we will –
once again – be prosperous in our industry.

Jan Callewaert
Chairman of the Board

15 April 2009
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The Option Board of Directors covers all crucial business
competency areas. The well-balanced selection of its
members combines a remarkable international background
in the telecom sector, wireless communication technologies,
law, and finance. And they bring academic as well as business
experience to the table.
Jan Callewaert (52)
Mr. Jan Callewaert is founder and Chairman of Option. Previously, he
was Product Manager for the Dealer Channel with Bull and Product
Marketing Manager for Office Automation Products with Ericsson. Mr.
Callewaert is also a qualified Commercial and Managerial Engineer
in Management Informatics. Mr. Jan Callewaert is through Pepper NV
the most important shareholder of Option. He(1) was appointed CEO of
the Company until 12 December 2007 (when he was replaced by his
management company, Mondo NV) and at the Board meeting of March
31, 2003, the Board of Directors elected Jan Callewaert as Chairman.
As a result, Mr. Jan Callewaert combines the function of Chairman and
CEO (through his management company, Mondo NV), a deviation from
one of the principles set by the Belgian Corporate Governance Code.
The Board of Directors is of the opinion that this combination is in the
Company best interests as Mr. Jan Callewaert’s vision on the wireless
industry combined with his drive and enthusiasm to execute this vision
as CEO are key factors to the success of the Company. Furthermore,
given the size of the Company and its growing pattern, the split
between chairman and CEO would add another layer of complexity in
the Company. The Board of Directors is of the opinion that this would
not benefit the Company’s ability to react fast to internal and external
changes and challenges.
Arnoud De Meyer (55)
Mr. Arnoud De Meyer is Professor of Management Studies at
Cambridge University (UK). He specializes in manufacturing and
technology strategy, the implementation of new manufacturing
technologies, and the management of R&D. Professor De Meyer has
also acted as a consultant for a number of medium-sized and large
companies throughout Europe and Asia.
Philip Vermeulen (52)
Mr. Philip Vermeulen served in various positions with Chase Manhattan
Bank S.A. (Belgium), Sidel Computers Centers NV, and IPPA Bank
NV (Belgium). He was also Executive Senior Investment Manager
for Venture Capital with GIMV. He is an advisory director of various
companies active in the information technology business.

Lawrence Levy (70)
Mr. Lawrence Levy is Senior Counsel at Brown Rudnick Berlack Israels
LL P. He has been a partner at Brown Rudnick for 30 years, specialized
in Corporate and Securities Law. He is also a Director of Hologic, Inc.
and of Scivanta Medical Corporation. Mr. Levy received a Bachelor of
Arts from Yale University and a Bachelor of Laws degree from Harvard
Law School.
Jan Loeber (65)
Mr. Jan Loeber is the Chairman of the Stichting Organization of
Interxion, BV in the Netherlands and Chairman of Newfound Comm. He
was founder of GTS Carrier Services and Unitel, and held leadership
positions at Nokia Americas, ITT Europe, and AT&T (Bell Laboratories).
Mr. Loeber received his Bachelor of Science in Physics from Michigan
Technological University and his Master’s degree in Business
Administration from George Washington University.
David Hytha (54)
Mr. David Hytha has a wide experience in wireless communications. He
held leadership positions in new ventures and leading companies such
as T-Mobile, Silicon Wave (now RFMD), LGC Wireless, AT&T Network
Systems (now Lucent), and Motorola. Mr. Hytha holds a Bachelor of
Arts from the College of the Holy Cross and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from Columbia University in New York.

New Board members since 29 July 2008
Olivier Lefebvre (51)
Mr. Olivier Lefebvre was member of the Management Committee
of NYSE Euronext, CEO of the Brussels Stock Exchange and Chief
of Staff to the Belgian Minister of Finance. He also co-founded the
Belgian Corporate Governance Committee. Mr. Lefebvre holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from Cornell University
and a Ph.D in Economics from the Université Catholique de Louvain
(UCL).
Patrick De Smedt (54)
Mr. Patrick De Smedt has built vast experience in high-tech
markets with Microsoft. He was Chairman of Microsoft EMEA and
Vice President in various capacities including Sales, Marketing,
Business Development, Services for Enterprise Customers, and
the Relationships with Enterprise Partners. Mr. De Smedt holds a
Master’s degree in Commercial Engineering from the Katholieke
Universiteit Leuven (KUL).

(1) Mondo NV, a company incorporated and organized under Belgian law, represented by Jan Callewaert.
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Management Team

Strengthening operations and marketing
In 2008, Option reinforced its Management Team with a Chief
Operating Officer. We have grown to a size where a clearer
separation between strategic and operational responsibilities
will truly benefit our customers, investors, and employees.
We also welcomed a Vice President of Marketing to assist
us in realizing additional growth opportunities in a rapidly
expanding market.
Jan Callewaert (52), Founder and CEO
Mr. Jan Callewaert is founder and Chairman of Option. Previously, he
was Product Manager for the Dealer Channel with Bull and Product
Marketing Manager for Office Automation Products with Ericsson. Mr.
Callewaert is also a qualified Commercial and Managerial Engineer in
Management Informatics.
Philippe Rogge (39), Chief Operating Officer (COO)
Mr. Philippe Rogge has held a number of senior strategic and
operational positions within the Belgacom Group. These included,
among others, Vice President Business Development and Planning.
Mr. Rogge holds a Master’s degree in from Ghent University and
post-graduate qualifications from INSEAD and the Vlerick Leuven Gent
Management School.
JP Ziegler (44), Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Mr. John-Patrick Ziegler is a seasoned international executive. He
founded BGC Capital and was Managing Director of the ING Investment
Banking Group for Telecom, Media, and Technology. Prior to that,
he held senior positions in corporate development and international
strategic planning with MFS Communications and MCI/World-Com
International.
Bernard Schaballie (49), Vice President Engineering
Mr. Bernard Schaballie began his career as a research assistant
in digital signal processing and silicon compilers at the Katholieke
Universiteit Leuven (KUL). Before joining Option, he worked for Telindus
as Development Engineer, R&D Director, and Business Developer. Mr.
Schaballie holds a Master’s Degree in Electronics from the KUL.
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Our People

Patrick Hofkens (39), General Counsel and Vice President
Strategic Alliances
Mr. Patrick Hofkens was Senior Legal Counsel for the Borealis Group
and a lawyer with Loyens & Loeff. He returned to Option having
previously served as General Counsel to the company between April
1998 and December 2002. Mr. Hofkens holds a Master’s degree in
Law from the Katholieke Universiteit Leuven (KUL) and a Master’s
Degree in Corporate Law from the Katholieke Universiteit Brussel and
KUL.
Filip Buerms (45), Vice President Global Sales and Distribution
Mr. Filip Buerms has broad experience in building sales organizations
and implementing growth strategies with publicly traded US and British
companies. Among other positions, he has been European Director of
Distribution at Intel and Vice President Sales and Marketing with P&L
responsibility for Xircom EMEA. Mr. Buerms holds a Master’s Degree in
Electronics.
David Whelan (45), Vice President Global Operations
Mr. David Whelan´s career in the telecommunications and media sector
spans over 20 years. His extensive experience has been gained from
launching and running start-up operations in Europe, the Unites States,
and the Middle East. He also held director positions with Sonera Zed in
the UK and with Aerial Communications in the USA.
Martin Croome (46), Vice President Global Marketing
Mr. Martin Croome has held a wide range of product, program, and
channel marketing positions over the past 20 years. He has held,
among other positions, Product Marketing Manager for Hewlett
Packard’s PDA division in Singapore. He also served as Vice President
of Business Development for OEM sales at Socket Mobile. Mr. Croome
holds a Bachelor of Science (with Honors) in Computer Science from
Edinburgh University.

Cultivating talent —
even more important in challenging times
Talented people are — and always have been — at the core
of Option. It is their drive that makes us excel. It is their
know-how that will keep us at the forefront in a rapidly
evolving industry. And in challenging times, we recognize that
it is even more important to invest in their development, to
create a stimulating work environment, and to keep them fully
informed on where our company stands regarding every
emerging issue.
A well-balanced international workforce
At year-end, Option employed 668 fulltime employees and 66
contractors. This is a slight increase compared to 2007 when we
employed 615 fulltime colleagues and 52 contractors.
The Option workforce is highly international with 23 different
nationalities. Moreover, it is a mixture of both young and
experienced men and women.
360° feedback stimulates continuous improvement
Option encourages its employees to continuously improve their
performance. We for instance use the Performance Planning and
Evaluation (PP&E) System to review, recognize, and improve the
performance of our employees in line with our company’s key
objectives.
In 2008, we implemented a 360° feedback system. Our employees
can ask immediate colleagues, colleagues from other teams, or
customers to evaluate their performance. This is all aimed at
helping them to continuously improve.
Stimulating self-development
Option stimulates and supports any form of continuous learning.
This is accomplished via on-the-job-training as well as via
technical, product, and soft skill training programs organized by the
Option Competence Center.
In 2008, Option employees followed approximately 9,280 hours of
on-the-job-training. Among them were new employees as well as
people that had rotated jobs internally.
In addition, employees attended 7,554 hours of in-house training
programs. The past year, the Option Competence Center focused
mainly on soft skill training programs and intercultural training for
our Chinese and Japanese contacts.

Keeping our employees involved
Option values internal communication. Over the past year we’ve
regularly informed our people about the company’s standing via e-mail,
posts on the intranet, and staff presentations.
We have continued working with personal mentors for new employees
and regular update meetings with the HR department.
Something new in 2008 was the installation of the Works Council at
Option’s headquarters in Belgium as a result of the social elections.
The Works Council serves as a deliberative body where employees and
employer discuss and decide on certain action points.

Healthy and safe working conditions
Preparing for all possible contingencies
This past year Option inaugurated the Committee for Prevention
and Protection at Work (PPW) at its Belgium headquarters. The
committee immediately worked out fire alarm and evacuation
procedures for various disaster scenarios. These procedures have
already been tested during an exercise at the Option headquarters,
leading us to organize additional first aid and evacuation training.
Stimulating a healthy lifestyle
Option helps its employees maintain a healthy lifestyle by
organizing prevention campaigns and medical check-ups. This past
year, 103 employees were vaccinated against the flu and 49
employees participated in our medical check-ups. In addition, we
organized training sessions to prevent neck and back complaints
for employees who spend most of their time behind PC screens.
Adopting strict health and safety regulations in Ireland
Ireland has some of the most stringent workplace health and safety
legislations in the world. Option has aligned its approach
accordingly in its Cork subsidiary and continues to update its
employees on their rights and responsibilities. Health and safety
management will be an integral part of our quarterly and annual
business objectives review.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Statement of Business Ethics
Option is mindful of its responsibilities to behave in an ethical
manner in the course of pursuing its business goals and
therefore makes the following ethical statement.
Option NV, including all its subsidiaries, affiliates and/or
consolidated holdings adopts the following practices:
Investment
We will not invest in any of the following areas:
-- marketing, development or production of nuclear, chemical or
biological weapons
-- marketing, development or production of weapons of war or
other armaments
-- marketing, development or production of products involving
animal fur or animal testing
-- production of strategic parts of weapon systems of any kind.
-- marketing, development or production of pornography, the sex
industry, hard drugs or tobacco
Employment
We will not engage in any of the following activities:
-- use of children under the legal age for employment
-- use of forced, bonded or compulsory labour
Discrimination
We will not discriminate against our employees in any of the
following areas:
-- on the grounds of race, color, sex, sexual orientation, religion,
political opinion, age or nationality
-- on the grounds of pregnancy or maternity leave

Prevention of Corruption
We will include in our distribution and supply agreements
antibribery standard clauses. Our employment policies outline
measures that can and will be taken in order to prevent corruption.
Option, as a public company, respects the Corporate Governance
rules, as it is member of the ETHIBEL Sustainability index.

Environementel policy of the production and
logistical unit
The scope of operations of Option Wireless Ltd includes:
“Source, manufacture and supply of wireless communication
products and solutions”.
The organization recognizes its environmental responsibilities
to its staff, shareholders, customers and the general public and
is committed to the continual improvement of the operating
environment of its facilities. To this end it will maintain and
document an Environmental Management System which conforms
to: ISO 14001: 1996 and will take into account all regulatory and
legislative requirements pertinent to its sector, local operating
environment and customer requirements.
The organization’s objectives include the following:
-- communicating it’s policies both internally and externally
-- commitment to continual improvement in environmental
performance
-- using the input of staff, customers, shareholders, government,
local authorities, interested third parties and the general public
-- awareness and training on environmental issues
-- creating a better environment for all, through the reduction,
recycling and reuse of waste, the optimum usage of resources
and the elimination of polluting releases of the environment
-- compliance with all pertinent applicable regulations and
legislation
-- prevention of pollution
-- manufacture and supply of product in a safe environment to
customer specifications and requirements

The above policy is supported by the management of Option
Wireless Ltd who shall commit the necessary resources in ensuring
that the objectives and targets can be achieved. Appropriate
programs are set up to achieve our objectives and will be reviewed
at the Annual Management Review and Quarterly Objective Review
Meetings.
Vigeo results
Vigeo, the corporate social responsibility ratings agency, assessed
Option’s corporate responsibility profile. Vigeo concluded that
despite its limited size compared with the other companies in
the sector, Option shows an overall good level of awareness on
corporate social responsibility.

Quality certification
The Certificate of Registration of Quality System to I.S. EN ISO
9001:2000 has been delivered by the National Standards Authority
of Ireland to Option Wireless Ltd on 08 February 2006.
The Certificate of Registration of Environmental System to I.S. EN
ISO 14001:2004 has been delivered by the National Standards
Authority of Ireland to Option Wireless Ltd on June 23, 2006.
The Certificate of Registration of Quality System to I.S. ISO
9001/2000 has been delivered by the National Standards Authority
of Ireland to Option Wireless Ltd on 19 August 2006.

Purchasing
We will put into place checks, controls and procedures to ensure all
our suppliers and sub-contractors:
-- have ethical standards that do not compromise any of the above
-- have checks, controls and procedures that ensure their suppliers
or sub-contractors do not compromise any of the above
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2

Financials

Consolidated and statutory report 2008 of the Board of Directors of Option nv

Ladies and Gentlemen,
Dear Shareholders,
We hereby present to you our report relating to the statutory
and consolidated results of Option NV (also referred to as the
“Company”) for the financial year that ended on 31 December
2008.
The consolidated results include the financial statements of the
parent company Option NV and all its subsidiaries made up to the
end of the financial period. Intra-group trading has been eliminated
upon consolidation: Option Wireless Ltd. ( Cork, Ireland), Option
Germany GmbH (Augsburg, Germany), Option Inc. (Alpharetta,
United States of America), Option Wireless Japan KK (Tokyo,
Japan), Option Wireless Germany GmbH (Kamp-Lintfort, Germany),
Option Wireless Hong Kong Limited (Hong Kong, PR China), Option
Wireless Hong Kong Ltd. Representation Office (Suzhou, PR China),
Option Wireless Hong Kong Limited Taiwan Branch (Taipei, Taiwan),
Option Wireless Sweden AB (Stockholm, Sweden) and Multi Mode
Multi Media Solutions NV, abbreviated “M4S” (Leuven, Belgium)
(jointly “Option” or the “Group”).

OVERVIEW OF RESULTS AND ALLOCATION
OF RESULTS OF THE COMPANY
- Consolidated results
For a detailed report on the consolidated Income Statement and
Balance Sheet, including IFRS (International Financial Reporting
Standards) disclosure notes, we refer to the financial report of
this brochure.
The highlights of the consolidated results include the following:
-- Full year revenues were EUR 268.1 million, which means a
decrease of 11% compared with EUR 301.5 million revenues
realized during the full year 2007.
-- Gross profit for the year was EUR 74.6 million, a decrease of
16.3% compared with EUR 89.2 million in 2007. The gross
margin in the full year 2008 amounted to 27.8%, compared
with a gross margin of 29.6% in 2007.
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-- The EBIT decreased to EUR-29.3 million or -10.9% on total
revenues during the full year 2008 compared with EUR 2.5
million in 2007.
-- The net result decreased to EUR -19.0 million, or EUR -0.46
per basic and diluted share. This compares with a net result
of EUR 6.4 million or EUR 0.16 per basic and diluted share in
2007.
-- The current year’s result includes adjustments and provisions
in order to properly reflect the state of business for year-end
2008. The main adjustments and provisions include:
-- A review of the existing capitalized development projects
resulted in an impairment of EUR 7.7 million due to rapidly
changing technologies and deterioration of global economic
conditions.
-- An increased reserve against inventories during the year
of EUR 2 million compared to year-end 2007, mainly to
cover excess positions and to lower the stock value to
net realizable value for certain products. In addition, an
amount of EUR 2.4 million has been expensed as a result of
inventory write offs during 2008.
-- Aside from the impairments, the overall operating expenses
increased mainly due to:
-- Increased royalty payments for license fees and marketing
development funds which are mainly volume related; and
-- Increased R&D expenditures which are mainly related to
the 2008 full year effect of the Kamp-Lintfort development
facilities, acquired in June 2007.
- Statutory results
Full year statutory operating income was EUR 49.0 million
(based on EUR 11.9 million turnover, EUR 15.4 million capitalized
development costs and EUR 21.8 million of other operating
intercompany income and recovery of expenses), representing
a year-on-year decrease of -13.0 % compared with 2007
revenues of EUR 56.3 million (based mainly on EUR 18 million
turnover, EUR 15 million capitalized development costs and EUR
23.2 million of other operating intercompany income).
The operating charges grew from EUR 69.3 million to EUR
75.8 million resulting in an operational result or EBIT of EUR

Consolidated and statutory report 2008 of the Board of Directors of Option nv

-26.8 million compared to an EBIT of EUR -13.0 million in 2007
representing a decrease of EUR -13.8 million. This decrease
is mainly explained by lower operating income combined with
component purchases and higher depreciation and operational
costs compared to 2007.
During 2008, the Company reviewed the existing capitalized R&D
projects, which resulted in an impairment of EUR -12.2 million
having its source in changing technologies and fast changing
market conditions. This amount was posted as an exceptional
result in the Company’s statutory results.
Due to the above, the result before taxes and the net result
decreased from EUR -12.8 million to EUR
-39.1, representing a decrease of EUR -26.3 million.
The intangible assets decreased from EUR 18.8 million to EUR
12.7 million, mainly explained by a combination of capitalized
development costs and posted depreciations and impairments.
The tangible assets decreased from EUR 15.8 million to EUR
12.4 million mainly due to posted depreciations.
The inventories grew from EUR 2.6 million to EUR 3.0 million,
mainly due to an increase in the inventory level of components.
The trade and other receivables increased from EUR 19.8
million to EUR 40.7 million, mainly explained by an increase
in intercompany receivables with Option Wireless Ltd. (Cork,
Ireland).
Cash and cash equivalents decreased over the year from EUR
15.6 million to EUR 5.4 million at the end of 2008.
The amounts payable within one year increased from EUR 10.7
million to EUR 51.9 million mainly explained by an increase of
EUR 4.1 million in accounts payable and an increase of EUR
37.9 million for other debts which are related to intercompany
transactions.
On a balance sheet total of EUR 77.7 million, total equity
amounted to EUR 24.9 million. At the end of 2008, therefore the
Company’s solvency ratio amounted to 32%.

On 31 December 2008 there were 241 full time equivalents in
the Company. This compares with 233 full time equivalents in
the previous year.
- Allocation of the statutory result
The statutory accounts of the Company (Belgian GAAP) reported
a net loss for the year 2008 of EUR -39.1 million, compared with
a net loss of EUR -12.8 million in 2007.
The Board of Directors proposes adding non-consolidated net
loss of EUR -39.1 million of 2008 to the profit carried forward
from the previous years.
Abridged allocation account
(According to Belgian Accounting Standards)
December 31- in Thousand EUR

2008

2007

Profit/(loss) carried forward
from previous year

12 410

25 177

Profit/(loss) for the period available
for appropriation

(39 124)

(12 767)

Profit/(loss) to be appropriated

(26 714)

12 410

ACTIVITIES IN THE FIELD OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
AND THE POSITION OF THE COMPANY AND THE GROUP
- Market overview (1)
Wireless data continues to be a growth market as we move into
2009. In 2008 shipments grew 31% globally. Even accounting
for moderate growth in 2009 due to the global economic
environment, annual growth for the wireless data market is
expected to continue to grow at a Compounded Annual Growth
Rate (CAGR) of 33% through 2013.
In 2008, the market continued to emphasize the importance of
the plug and play simplicity of USB devices. During the year, USB
modem shipments rose to 83% of volumes from 46% in 2007.
In addition, the market transitioned from High Speed Downlink
Packet Access (HSDPA) to High Speed Uplink Packet Access
(HSUPA) growing from 16% of devices in 2007 to 39% in 2008.

(1) ABI Update Cellular Modem report 2009, Published Q1, 2009 by ABI Research, Oyster Bay NY, USA
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The embedded module market continued to grow slower than
expected although it did constitute 8% of total market volume
in 2008, double the rate of 2007. The market for embedded
modules is finally starting to emerge due to the ultra successful
netbook form factor. Embedded modules are expected to
equal USB devices in terms of volumes around the 2011-2012
timeframe.
In 2008, software became a more important element of the data
modem market. While software is not yet driving a significant
amount of revenue, connection managers, compression
technologies, online storefronts, and other innovations are
providing platforms for differentiation among the device
manufacturers.
Geographically, Europe continues to be the largest market for
data modems accounting for almost 40% of volume. However,
in 2009 and after, North America and Asia are expected to grow
more than 50% year on year.

possible. On average, Option reduced the costs of its products
by 15-20% during the year.
During the year, USB devices remained the dominant form factor
generating 69% of volume and 60% of revenue. While data
cards continued to decline during the year, embedded modules
showed consistent growth representing approximately 10% for
the full year, but almost 18% in the fourth quarter.
During 2008, Option worked through a very difficult period
with regards to new products. In our market, product lifecycles
continue to decline, and yet due to a restructuring of the product
portfolio, Option did not introduce any new products until late
in the third quarter and early in the fourth quarter when five
new products were launched. The lack of new products had a
negative impact on the first three quarters. However, the average
selling price of Option’s product portfolio stabilized as of the
early part of the third quarter. This translated into improved
revenues in the fourth quarter when the continuing growth in
volumes presented 15% revenue growth over the third quarter.

Finally, the market is expected to be further driven by innovation,
predominantly in the form of faster download and upload speeds.
The first roll-outs of HSPA+ networks will occur in 2009 followed
in 2010 by some early LTE roll-outs. The devices for these
networks are expected to become material in 2010 for HSPA+
and 2011 for LTE. Therefore, in the short term, the market will
most likely continue to be dominated by HSDPA/HSUPA USB
devices.

In the second part of the year, Option also saw strong growth
in the US both in terms volume and revenue. In addition, Option
maintained its position as a key supplier to most of the major
European operators in the USB market. This achievement
strongly affected the volume and revenue in the latter part of the
year.

- Option’s position
In 2008, Option delivered 3.4 million devices, a 42% increase
versus 2007. In addition, in the fourth quarter of the year, Option
delivered more that 1 million units for the first time in its history.
Revenue for the year stood at EUR 268.1 million, a decline of 11%
versus 2007 due to average unit price decreases of more than
39% versus the prior year. However, in the second half of 2008,
the average sales price per unit stabilized and remained flat.

Option also continued the work on its partnership with Intel
which should result in the commercialization of products in
2009. The Company’s investments in this project have allowed
it to develop the smallest HSUPA module in the world. Moreover,
the module is manufactured with new production methods
giving it specific qualities in terms of size, thermal management
and overall robustness (shock and moisture resistance). These
specific characteristics allow it to be embedded in a variety of
devices where size constraints would prevent the use of the
existing standard modules.

Again, Option continued to see its toughest competition in
Europe. In order to continue to compete effectively, Option
finalized the transition of all of its core manufacturing to China.
Only product customization is currently completed in Europe in
order to keep manufacturing and transportation costs as low as
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As discussed previously, embedded modules are becoming
a more important part of Option’s revenue. As a result, the
core customer for Option no longer consists exclusively of
operators, but also of OEM/ODM laptop and electronic device
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manufacturers like Sony, Acer, Compal and USI. Option is
continuing to develop its teams in Asia and the US to capitalize
on these opportunities.
On the software side Option further expanded its connection
manager product line that is bundled with the hardware products
it sells. Along with its existing software product line, Option
developed a new software product “uCAN®”, announced in
February 2009. uCAN® is a one click launch pad that allows a
USB modem user to easily connect to the Internet or to access
applications, documents, MP3 collections or any other content,
and this from any personal computer. As the applications run
from the USB modem no trace of activity is left on the host
computer after the USB modem is disconnected. This unique
and versatile functionality will appeal to anyone who prefers - or
needs - to travel light without a laptop.
- Engineering
Option continued to invest in R&D during the year. During the
last two quarters of the year, five new products were launched
in quick succession. In addition, the Company increased its
software development team significantly. It is expected that
software will enable Option to generate new sources of income
and create market differentiation.
In the second half of the year the R&D department began
working on HSPA+ products which are expected to generate
revenue in 2009. As highlighted above, the Company also
continued the development of a unique embedded module for
use in MIDs, netbooks, laptops and other consumer electronic
devices. These modules are a derivative of the work done in
conjunction with Intel since 2007.
In the course of 2008, Option acquired M4S, a spinoff from
IMEC, the specialist wireless research facility in Leuven, Belgium.
M4S is developing specialist RF technologies that should provide
significant flexibility in the next generation of mobile broadband
devices. Option is currently looking for a strong financial partner
to provide the balance of funding for M4S.

- Wireless Broadband technologies
During the year, Option launched a suite of embedded modules,
USB sticks, data cards and a router that are all HSUPA capable.
Where HSDPA continued to be the predominant standard for
the year, it is expected that HSUPA will become the standard for
the new products launched in 2009. Towards the second half of
2009 the market will see the deployment of HSUPA+ networks
with a number of operators. In the future LTE should launch with
a number of operators in 2010. The pace of this expansion will
be heavily driven by the economic environment throughout 2009
and 2010.
- Organization
Since its incorporation in 1986, Option has grown from a startup into a group with a global presence employing over 668 full
time employees spread across facilities in Belgium, Ireland,
Germany, Japan, USA, China and Taiwan. Option’s headcount
increased year end to year end by 10.4%, mostly in technical
and engineering groups working in product development.
The liquidation process of the Swedish subsidiary “Option
Wireless Sweden AB” was finalized in the course of 2008.
On 26 August 2008 two new independent directors were
admitted to the Board of Directors of the Company: An Other
Look To Efficiency SPRL, represented by Mr Olivier Lefebvre,
and Visinnova BVBA, represented by Mr Patrick De Smedt. Both
nominations entailed a significant increase of the in-house
know-how on financial and capital markets on the one hand and
the high tech sector on the other hand.
During the year, some additional changes to the executive
management entered into force or were announced, representative
of Option’s continuous efforts to better align the Group with the
changing market opportunities. A new Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
started working on 7 January 2008, while the appointment of a
new Chief Operating Officer (COO) was announced in December
2008, starting as from 19 January 2009.
- Operations
The further growth of the wireless data market and the uptake
of the consumer market led to a production volume increase of
42% to a new record of 3.4 million units shipped during 2008.
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In addition the Group continued to outsource an increasing
part of the total production and manufacturing to Asia in order
to compete more effectively. During the year, outsourced
manufacturing to China increased from 80% in January
2008 to 100% by year end, thereby terminating all remaining
manufacturing in Europe. However, Option still runs its supply
chain management and customization operations from Ireland.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS THAT TOOK PLACE AFTER THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR
On Group level, a number of significant events took place and were
communicated via the Company’s Website. We provide an overview
of the different press releases that were issued during the first
three months of the financial year 2009:
- Customer announcements
-- 12 January 2009: Option’s new-entry USB modem selected by O2;
-- 16 February 2009: O2 offers new Option ExpressCard with
retractable antenna;
-- 17 February 2009: Gemalto partners with Option to deliver
remote management over the Internet of 3G/HSPA USB
modems for mobile operators.
- Operational organization
-- 26 January 2009: Option appoints Brightpoint to expand
distribution of wireless broadband devices;
-- 5 March 2009: Option reports fourth quarter and full year
2008 results and announced that the Group is taking the
necessary steps to re-align the Group’s cost base with the
new economic reality, including a one off restructuring,
combined with other cost saving projects and measures.
- Technological leadership
-- 22 January 2009: Option shipping stylish new router: the
GlobeSurfer III;
-- 16 February 2009: Option demonstrates HSPA+;
-- 16 February 2009: GlobeSurfer X-1 connects family or small
business in instant 3G and WiFi network;
-- 16 February 2009: Option’s uCAN® transforms USB modem
into a virtual pc.
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VALUATION RULES
The going concern valuation rules were used both for the annual
accounts and the consolidated annual accounts of the Company.
The Company is of the opinion that, notwithstanding the existence
over the last two financial years of losses carried forward, the use
of going concern valuation rules is justified taking into account the
following:
- Wireless Data
The Company operates primarily in the wireless data segment.
This segment is currently one of the most important growth
areas for the telecom sector. The growth potential of the sector is
further evidenced by the development of new product categories
(such as MIDs) by major IT companies and component suppliers
(such as Intel). Option has been active in this market segment for
more than a decade and is therefore ideally positioned to play a
leading role as one of the innovators in this market segment.
- Organization:
The current economic environment affected the fourth quarter
dramatically. Until December however, the work that had been
undertaken by the Company during the year was beginning to
show positive results.
-- Five new products were launched on schedule in the late third
and early fourth quarter.
-- Volume wise, October and November were two of the best
months in the Company’s history. More than 1 million units
were shipped in the fourth quarter, resulting in a 46% year on
year increase from 2007.
-- The average selling price across the portfolio of products was
stabilized from the second quarter, after declining more than
39% from the third quarter of 2007.
-- The full transition of outsourced manufacturing to China
was completed in the first quarter enabling continued cost
reductions.
The Board is convinced that the recently hired COO will further
strengthen the management team to successfully execute the
overall Company’s strategy.
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- Cost Reduction Plans:
Option continues to focus on cost reduction. Therefore,
the Company is taking the necessary steps to re-align the
Company’s cost base with the new economic reality, including a
one off restructuring, combined with other cost saving projects
and measures. It is expected that overall run rate operating
expenses will be reduced by 20% compared to 2008. This will
be put into effect via a combination of headcount reductions and
general improvements in the Company’s non-HR cost base.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
- The Belgian Corporate Governance Code
On 9 December 2004, the Corporate Governance Committee
published the Belgian Corporate Governance Code. This
Code entered into force on 1 January 2005. Option explicitly
adheres to this Code and has, as of 1 January 2006, made
public on its Website www.option.com (refer to the “invest”
section), a Corporate Governance Charter, outlining its corporate
governance structure and policies, in line with said Code.

- Key Developments:
Although the first half year of 2009 could be difficult, the
Company has identified some positive indicators in the market.
In the embedded module space, the Company continues to
successfully expand its customer base. The success with Acer
and Sony is being supplemented by deals with major ODM
manufacturers Compal and USI.

The Code has a high degree of built-in flexibility, enabling it to
be adapted to each company varying size, activities and culture.
It is based on a “comply or explain” system, which allows
companies to deviate from the provisions of the Code when their
specificities so justify, subject to providing adequate explanation.

In addition, the molded form factor of the GTM 501 module
is being included in consumer electronic devices, extending
Option’s customer base far beyond the PC manufacturers and
mobile operators.

Option adopted the “comply or explain” system with regards the
following topics, also described in this annual report:
-- The combination chairman – CEO
-- The combination Nomination Committee – Remuneration
Committee
-- The proposal to grant warrants to the Board of Directors.

Finally, in these difficult times, Option is focusing on core
geographies where profitability can be maximized. This includes
the US market where Option’s share continues to grow. The US
and Asia continue to value the strong quality of product Option
delivers and margins remain strong in these markets. Therefore
the Company will continue to expand and deploy resources in
those two regions.
The Company’s ongoing efforts to secure additional liquidity in
order to strengthen the Company’s cash position and to secure
its future working capital needs include:
-- Negotiations with its banks to restructure the currently
unavailable EUR 10 million credit line.
-- Negotiations with a strategic partner for an additional secured
loan facility. There are strong indicators that a positive
feedback can be expected from their investment committee.
-- Finally, the company continues to engage with other capital
providers for additional access to cash.

- Composition of the Board of Directors
The articles of association stipulate that the Board of Directors
is composed of a minimum of three and a maximum of nine
members, who are appointed by the general shareholders
meeting for a maximum period of six years. In accordance with
the principles of the Code the Company’s directors are appointed
for a maximum duration of four years. The Board of Directors
must include at least three independent directors.
It is currently composed of eight members, namely:
Mr Jan Callewaert, Executive Director,
Chairman and Managing Director (“gedelegeerd bestuurder”)
Mr Arnoud De Meyer, Independent Director
Mr Lawrence Levy, Non-executive Director
Mr Jan Loeber, Independent Director
Mr David A. Hytha, Non-executive Director
Q-List BVBA, represented by Mr Philip Vermeulen
(permanent representative), Independent Director
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An Other Look To Efficiency SPRL, represented by Mr Olivier
Lefebvre (permanent representative), Independent Director
Visinnova BVBA, represented by Mr Patrick De Smedt
(permanent representative), Independent Director

The term of the office of Mr. Callewaert, De Meyer, Levy, Loeber
and Hytha will expire immediately after the Annual General
Meeting, which will be asked to approve the annual accounts
for the year ending in 2008. The Board of Directors proposes to
renew these mandates for a period of four years.
The term of the office of Q-List BVBA, An Other Look To
Efficiency SPRL and Visinnova BVBA, all appointed by the
decision of the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders
held on 26 August 2008, will expire immediately after the Annual
General Meeting, which will be asked to approve the annual
accounts for the year ending in 2011.
- Functioning of Board of Directors
In 2008, the Board of Directors met twelve times, four times
in person and eight times via conference call. The average
attendance rate amounts to 91.46% (2007: 89.50%), with the
following individual attendance rate figures:

Jan Callewaert

100.00%

Arnoud De Meyer

83.33%

Philip Vermeulen

100.00%

(1)(2)

Jan Loeber

91.67%

David Hytha

75.00%

Lawrence Levy

100.00%

An Other Look To Efficiency SPRL
(from 26 August 2008 onwards (3) )

100.00%

Visinnova BVBA (from 26 August 2008 onwards (4) )

80.00%

- Related parties transactions
No transactions occurred in 2008 between the Company
(including its related companies) and members of the Board of
Directors that triggered the application of the conflict of interest
procedure foreseen by the Belgian Code of Companies (Article
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(1) Philip Vermeulen: (until 26 August 2008)
(2) Q-List BVBA: (from 26 August 2008 onwards)
(3) % calculated upon attendance since the appointment
(4) % calculated upon attendance since the appointment

523 of the Belgian Code of Companies).
The policy with regard to transactions between the Company or
any of its affiliated companies on the one hand and members
of the Board of Directors or the Executive Management Team
(or members of their immediate families) on the other hand that
could give rise to conflicts of interest (other than those defined
in the Belgian Companies Act) has been defined in the Corporate
Governance Charter. In line with the decision taken by the Board
of Directors in 2006 the Company reports on the professional
fees charged by the US based law firm Brown Rudnick LLP, since
Mr. Lawrence Levy who joined the Board of Directors of the
Company early 2006 is one of the Senior Counsels of this law
firm. As previously agreed Mr. Lawrence Levy does not directly
work on Option related matters in his capacity of Senior Counsel
of Brown Rudnick LLP.
In order to avoid any ambiguity the Board of Directors decided in
2006 to report on an annual basis on the fees that were paid to
Brown Rudnick LLP during the financial year. In 2008, the fees
paid to Brown Rudnick LLP amounted to EUR 38k (2007: EUR
77k).
In the course of normal operations, related party transactions
entered into by the Group have been contracted on an armslength basis.
- Audit Committee
In 2008 the Audit Committee of the Company was composed
of three independent directors. The composition change during
the year as follows: Mr. Philip Vermeulen was member from the
beginning of the year until 26 August 2008, Q-List BVBA was
nominated director of the Company as of 26 August 2008 and
appointed member of the Audit Committee by Board decision
of September 2008), Mr. Arnoud De Meyer was member of
the Audit Committee during the whole year, An Other Look To
Efficiency SPRL was nominated director on 26 August 2008,
and was appointed member of the Audit Committee by the
Board decision of September 2008) and Mr. Lawrence Levy was
appointed member of the Audit Committee in replacement of Mr
Jan Callewaert by decision of the Board of Directors in February
2008, it being understood that the audit committee did not
meet in 2008 prior to his appointment, and this until the Board
decision of September 2008).

Consolidated and statutory report 2008 of the Board of Directors of Option nv

The Audit Committee gives guidance and controls the financial
reporting of the Company. It ensures the presence of sufficient
internal control mechanisms and, in co-operation with the
statutory auditor of the Company, investigates questions relating
to bookkeeping and valuation. The Audit Committee met five
times in 2008 and reported to the Board of Directors on its
activities and findings. The individual attendance rate figures (i.e.
the attendance of the individual Committee member during the
time he was member of the Committee) were as follows:

Arnoud De Meyer

100.00%

Philip Vermeulen (until 26 August 2008)

100.00%

Lawrence Levy (until September 2008)

100.00%

Q-List BVBA (from September 2008 onwards)

100.00%

An Other Look To Efficiency SPRL
(from September 2008 onwards)

100.00%

- Remuneration and Nomination Committee
The Remuneration Committee is composed of two independent
directors, i.e. Mr. Philip Vermeulen until 26 August 2008 replaced
by Q-List BVBA by decision of the Board of Directors in September
2008 and Mr. Arnoud De Meyer, as well as Mr. Lawrence Levy. The
Remuneration Committee’s role is to provide for a fair policy of
remuneration for the employees and to ensure best international
practices are respected when determining the remuneration and
incentives of Directors and Officers, and the appointment of the
latter. Given the size of the Group, the Remuneration Committee is
therefore also combining the function of a Nomination Committee.
The Remuneration Committee met two times in 2008 and
reported to the Board of Directors on its activities and findings.
The individual attendance rate figures (i.e. the attendance of the
individual Committee member during the time he was member of
the Committee) were as follows:

Arnoud De Meyer

100.00%

Philip Vermeulen (until 26 August 2008)

100.00%

Lawrence Levy

100.00%

Q-List BVBA (from September 2008 onwards)

100.00%

- Strategic Committee
The composition of the Strategic Committee changed during the
year. Until the Board decision of September 2008 the Committee
was composed of five directors Mr. Jan Callewaert, Mr. David
Hytha, Mr. Jan Loeber, Mr. Arnoud De Meyer and Mr. Lawrence
Levy. In September 2008, the Board decided to change the
composition of the Committee to four directors: Mr. Jan
Callewaert, Mr. David Hytha, Mr. Jan Loeber and Visinnova BVBA.
The Committee’s role is to reflect upon the mid and long term
strategy of the Company taking into account the global market
evolutions and developments in the telecom sector (and more
in general the high tech industry). In addition, the Committee
reviews and evaluates major strategic decisions and provides
guidance to the Board of Directors. The Strategic Committee
met six times in 2008 (i.e. four times in person and twice via
conference call) and reported to the Board of Directors on its
activities and findings. The individual attendance rate figures (i.e.
the attendance of the individual Committee member during the
time he was member of the Committee) were as follows:

Jan Callewaert
Arnoud De Meyer (until September 2008)

100.00%
50.00%

Jan Loeber

100.00%

David Hytha
Lawrence Levy (until September 2008)

100.00%

Visinnova BVBA (from September 2008 onwards)

100.00%

100.00%

- Remuneration of the directors
The directors are remunerated for the execution of their mandate.
The remuneration includes both a fixed amount for Board
membership and an attendance fee for the meetings of the Board
of Directors and the meetings of the Committees of the Board.
In addition to the aforementioned remuneration directors are
also entitled to out-of-pocket expenses in line with the Company
policies (especially travel policy) and provided such expenses are
reasonable and required for the performance of their duties as
Director of the Company.
Although the Corporate Governance Code stipulates that it is
not recommended to grant performance-related remuneration
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such as stock related long-term incentive schemes to the nonexecutive directors, the Board of Directors has proposed and the
Extraordinary Shareholders’ meeting has approved on 26 August
2008 a warrants plan and resolved to grant warrants to all the
directors of the Company in the following proportions:

Jan Callewaert

50,000

Jan Loeber

50,000

Arnoud De Meyer

50,000

David Hytha

50,000

Lawrence Levy

50,000

Q-List BVBA

30,000

An Other Look To Efficiency SPRL

30,000

Visinnova BVBA

340,000

Board meetings attended

Jan Callewaert (1)

The grant of warrants to the directors is at no real cost to the
Company, and the exercise of the warrants to the directors can
only result in a very small dilution. In addition, the grant of the
warrants is in line with common practice in the international and
highly competitive high-tech and telecom sector.

30,000

Total

Name

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that granting warrants to
directors allows the Company to appoint directors of the highest
international standing and allows the Company to ensure the
continued involvement of the directors whilst at the same time
limiting the financial burden upon the Company. The Board of
Directors is convinced that the integrity and experience of the
directors is the best guarantee of good judgment and decisionmaking. Finally the vesting schedule under the warrants plan is
spread out over a period of four (4) years thereby mitigating the
risk of short term driven decisions.

Physical
attendance
4/4

In 2008, the global compensation for the Board of Directors
amounted to EUR 321k (2007: 270k).
In addition, one non-executive Board member received an
amount of EUR 4k in his capacity of member of the Board in
Ireland.

calls

Audit
Committees
attended

Remuneration
Committees
attended

Strategic
Committees
attended

8/8

N.A.

N.A.

6/6

Total remuneration
Thousands EUR
48.50 (2007: 45)

Arnoud De Meyer

4/4

6/8

5/5

2/2

2/4

49.00 (2007: 45)

Philip Vermeulen

2/2

5/5

3/3

1/2

N.A.

20.50 (2007: 45)

Lawrence Levy

4/4

8/8

3/3

2/2

4/4

49.00 (2007: 43.75)

Jan Loeber

4/4

7/8

N.A.

N.A.

6/6

47.50 (2007: 41,5)

David Hytha

4/4

5/8

N.A.

N.A.

6/6

45.50 (2007: 41,5)

Q-List BVBA

2/2

3/3

2/2

1/2

N.A.

26.50 (2007: N.A.)

An Other Look To Efficiency SPRL

2/2

3/3

2/2

N.A.

N.A.

16.83 (2007: N.A.)

Visinnova BVBA

2/2

2/3

N.A.

N.A.

2/2

18.08 (2007: N.A.)

(1) Excluding CEO remuneration to Mondo NV
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- Executive Management Team
The Executive Management Team is currently composed of the
following members:

Jan Callewaert, Founder and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)(1)

Mondo NV, represented by Jan Callewaert

75,000

Filip Buerms, Vice President Global Sales & Distribution(2)

Encore Plus BVBA, represented by Filip Buerms

50,000

Patrick Hofkens, General Counsel & Vice President Global
Strategic Alliances

Patrick Hofkens

50,000

Bernard Schaballie

50,000

Philippe Rogge, Chief Operating Officer (COO)

David Whelan

50,000

David Whelan, Vice President Global Operations

Brayoe Consultants BVBA, represented by John
Patrick Ziegler

50,000

John Patrick Ziegler, Chief Financial Officer (CFO)(5)

Total

(3)(4)

Bernard Schaballie, Vice President Global Engineering

- Executive officers compensation
(Executive Management Team)
The CEO of the Group (its permanent representative, Mr. Jan
Callewaert) controls a management company which performs
management services for the Group. The remuneration for these
management services in 2008 amounted to EUR 540k fixed
(2007: EUR 540k). The variable compensation related to 2008
was waived.
The outstanding receivable towards Pepper NV (100% Jan
Callewaert) amounted to EUR 51k in 2008 and remained
unchanged compared to 2007. Jan Callewaert holds together
with Pepper NV (which he controls) 17.34% of the shares of the
Company.
For the year 2008, an aggregate gross amount of EUR 1.404k
was attributed to the other five members of the Executive
Management Team (2007: EUR 958k to six members of the
Executive Management Team). In 2008, an amount of EUR 108k
was accrued as variable pay relating to 2008 performance
(2007: EUR 0). For the members of the Executive Committee,
benefits include an extra-legal pension scheme, the cost of
which amounted to EUR 68k (2007: EUR 73k).
The 2007 compensations have been restated in order to be
consistent and comparable with the amounts disclosed in 2008,
including only the compensations of the Executive Management
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Team (2007: based on Vice Presidents).
The following numbers of warrants “V” were granted to the
members of the Executive Team in the course of 2008:

325,000

All the above warrants were accepted in a timely matter.
The main terms and conditions of the warrants plan “V”
governing the above warrants are as follows:
-- The warrants are subject to a vesting scheme (20% vested
6 months after the offer; 20% 1 year after the offer, 20% 2
years after the offer, 20% 3 years after the offer and 20% 4
years after the offer);
-- The exercise price of the above warrants amounts to EUR 2.84
per warrant for all the members of the Executive Management
Team;
-- The exercise must take place during exercise windows (i.e.
May, September or December);
-- Upon conversion of their warrants the warrant holders receive
one ordinary share of the Company per warrant;
-- The plan provides for an accelerated vesting and exercise in
the event of a change of control.

RELEVANT INFORMATION IN THE EVENT
OF A PUBLIC TAKE-OVER BID
- Capital structure – capital shares/securities - rights
The share capital of the Company amounts to EUR
6,116,067.18. It is fully issued and is represented by
41,249,296 equal ordinary shares without nominal value, each
with a par value of EUR 0.1483 (rounded amount).

(1) Mondo NV, a company incorporated and organised under Belgian law, represented by Jan Callewaert
(2) Encore Plus BVBA, a company incorporated and organised under Belgian law, represented by Filip Buerms.
(3) Pirogue Consulting BVBA, a company incorporated and organized under Belgian law, represented by Philippe Rogge.
(4) As from 19 January 2009.
(5) Brayoe Consultants BVBA, a company incorporated and organised under Belgian law, represented by John Patrick Ziegler.
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The shares exist, as a general rule, in dematerialized form.
However each shareholder is entitled to request, at any time
and at his/her own cost, the conversion of his/her shares into
registered shares. On 31 December 2008 41,249,295 shares
existed in dematerialized form and 1 share in registered form.
Beside the above capital shares, the Company has issued
2,500,000 naked subscription rights (warrants) “V”, following a
resolution of the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders
held on 26 August 2008.
A total of 2,241,540 warrants “V” were offered in the course of
financial year 2008:
-- 340,000 warrants were granted to the Directors (100%
accepted in 2008);
-- 325,000 warrants were granted to the members of the
Executive Management Team (100% accepted in 2008);
-- 1,576,540 warrants were offered to employees and selfemployed advisors of Option NV and subsidiaries (offered on
December 23, 2008).
None of the warrants offered and accepted in 2008 were vested
on 31 December 2008.
The above extraordinary general meeting of shareholders of 26
August 2008 also resolved to withdraw all 2,200,000 warrants
“U”, as issued following resolutions of the extraordinary general
meeting of shareholders of 30 March 2007 and none of which
had ever been offered or granted.
- Transfer restrictions imposed by the law or the bylaws
None of the capital shares issued by the Company is subjected
to any legal or statutory transfer restrictions.
Pursuant to the warrant plan as approved by the extraordinary
general meeting of shareholders held on 26 August 2008 of the
warrants (subscription rights) “V” – as already awarded or to
be awarded in the future - may be transferred by the warrant
holders, except in the event of a decease.
- Holders with special rights
Pursuant to Article 14 of the bylaws of the Company Mr Jan
Callewaert has a binding proposition right for the nomination of
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one director for each tranche of 3% (three percent) of the total
amount of issued shares of the Company he holds directly or
indirectly, with a maximum proposition right for the nomination
of five (5) directors. He has this right on the condition that and
as long as he holds at least 15% (fifteen percent) of the total
amount of shares issued by the Company.
Systems of control of any employee share scheme where the
control rights are not exercised directly by the employees
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-- Voting rights attached to shares held in a cross-participation
between independent companies, representing more than
10% of the voting rights, if not transferred within one year, as
imposed by Article 632 §3 of the Belgian Code of Companies
(Article 632 §4 of the Belgian Code of Companies) (currently
not applicable to the Company (1) ).

There are no such employee share schemes relating to the
Company.

Furthermore, no one may, as a general rule, cast votes at a
general meeting of shareholders of the Company attached to
securities that he/she has not disclosed at least twenty (20) days
prior to a general meeting in accordance with the legislation on
important participations (Article 545 of the Code of Companies).

- Restrictions on voting rights
None of the capital shares of the Company is subject to any legal
or statutory voting power restrictions. Each capital share entitles
its holder to one vote.

The voting rights attached to shares encumbered with a life
tenancy (“vruchtgebruik”) are exercised by the life tenant. As far
as pledged shares are concerned, the voting rights are exercised
by the owner-pledgee.

The voting rights attached to the capital shares issued by the
Company are however suspended in the following events:
-- Voting rights attached to shares to which the Company itself
subscribes, directly or indirectly (Articles 442 and 585 of the
Belgian Code of Companies) (currently not applicable to the
Company (1) );
-- Voting rights attached to shares held by different owners, as
long as these co-owners have not designated one of them as
sole owner vis-à-vis the Company (Article 461 paragraph 1 of
the Belgian Code of Companies) (currently not applicable to
the Company (2) );
-- Voting rights attached to shares that have not been fully paidup despite a valid request thereto (Article 541 paragraph 3 of
the Belgian Code of Companies and Article 9 of the bylaws)
(currently not applicable to the Company (3) ).
-- Voting rights attached to shares in the Company acquired,
held or pledged by the Company or a direct subsidiary of the
Company (Articles 622 §1 first paragraph, 627 and 630 §1
paragraph 1 of the Belgian Code of Companies) (currently not
applicable to the Company (4) );
-- Voting rights attached to shares in the Company held by a
subsidiary to the Company, representing more than 10% of
the voting rights attached to all shares in the Company (Article
631 §1 paragraph 1 of the Belgian Code of Companies)
(currently not applicable to the Company (5) ):
(1) Situation on 31 December 2008.
(2) Situation on 31 December 2008.
(3) Situation on 31 December 2008.

(4) Situation on 31 December 2008.
(5) Situation on 31 December 2008.

Holders of subscription rights (warrants) only have an advisory
voting right at general meetings.
- Shareholders’ agreements
To the best knowledge of the Board of Directors of the Company
there are no shareholders’ agreements, which may result in
restrictions on the transfer of securities and/or the exercise of
voting rights.
- Rules governing the appointment and replacement of the
members of the Board of Directors of the Company
The Directors of the Company are appointed by the general
meeting of shareholders, deciding by a simple majority of votes.
There are no attendance requirements for the appointment of
Directors.
If a legal entity is appointed Director, it must appoint a
permanent representative from among its shareholders, directors
or employees, who is to be charged with the execution of the
task in the name of and for the account of the legal personalitydirector.
Pursuant to Article 14 of the bylaws of the Company Mr Jan
Callewaert has a binding proposition right for the nomination of
one director for each tranche of 3% (three percent) of the total

amount of issued shares of the Company he holds directly or
indirectly, with a maximum proposition right for five (5) Directors.
He has this right on the condition that and as long as he holds at
least 15% (fifteen percent) of the total amount of shares issued
by the Company.
Directors can at all times be dismissed by the general meeting
of shareholders, by a simple majority of votes. There are no
attendance requirements for the dismissal of Directors.
The bylaws of the Company provide the possibility for the Board
of Directors to appoint directors in the event of a vacancy. In that
case the Board of Directors has the right to provide a temporary
replacement. The next general meeting of shareholders is
to decide on the definitive appointment. The new Director
completes the term of office of his/her predecessor.
- Rules governing the amendments to the bylaws of the
Company
Save for capital increases decided by the Board of Directors
within the limits of the authorized capital, only the (extraordinary)
general meeting of shareholders is entitled to amend the
Company’s bylaws.
The general meeting of shareholders may only deliberate on
amendments to the bylaws – including mergers, de-mergers
and a winding-up – if fifty percent (50%) of the share capital
is represented. If that attendance quorum is not reached, a
new extraordinary general of meeting of shareholders must be
convened, which may deliberate regardless of the portion of the
share capital represented.
Amendments to the bylaws are only adopted, if approved by
seventy-five percent (75%) of the votes cast.
The following amendments to the bylaws require however a
special majority approval of eighty percent (80%) of the votes
cast:
-- Amendments to the provisions regarding the appointment and
the dismissal of directors (Article 14 of the bylaws);
-- Amendments to the corporate purpose (Article 559 of the
Belgian Code of Companies);
-- Modification of the legal form (Article 781 of the Code of Companies).

(1) Situation on 31 December 2008.
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- Powers of the Board of Directors relating to the issuance or
buy-back of shares of the Company
The share capital of the Company may be increased following
a decision of the Board of Directors, within the limits of the
“authorized capital”. The authorization thereto must be granted
by an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders; it is limited
in time and amount and is subject to specific justification and
purpose requirements. On 19 April 2006 the extraordinary
general meeting of shareholders of the Company authorized
the Board of Directors to increase the share capital, in one or
more times, by a maximum amount of EUR 6,116,067.21. This
authorization has been granted for a period of five years from
16 May 2006 (date of the publication of the above decision)
onwards. The board of directors has furthermore expressly
been authorized to use this “authorized capital” in the event
of a public take-over bid, within the limits of the Belgian Code
of Companies, for a period of three years from 16 May 2006
onwards.
The Board of Directors of the Company has also been authorized
to cause the Company to acquire own shares, where such
acquisition is necessary to avoid serious and imminent harm to
the Company. Said authorization was granted for a 3-year period
from 9 September 2008 (date of the publication of the resolution
of the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders held on 26
August 2008) onwards.
Finally the Board of Directors has also been authorized
to acquire, for a period of eighteen (18) months from 9
September 2008 (date of the publication of the resolution of
the extraordinary general meeting of shareholders held on 26
August 2008) onwards, the maximum number of own shares or
profit-sharing certificates as permitted by the Companies Code,
being such number whose aggregate par value does not exceed
ten percent (10%) of the capital, at a price equal to the average
closing price of the share over the last thirty (30) calendar days
prior to the transaction, increased or decreased by ten percent
(10%), as well as, as far as necessary, to renew the authorization
to transfer the own shares through sale or exchange or on the
stock exchange, according to the same conditions as those set
for the acquisition of own shares
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- Significant agreements to which the Company is a party
and which take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of
control of the Company following a take-over bid, and the
effects thereof
1. Supply agreements
-- Supply agreement entered into with Vodafone (possibility
to terminate with immediate effect within 2 months after
notification of change of control by the Company);
-- T-Mobile Supply and Purchase Framework Agreement
(possibility to terminate with a 30 days notice);
-- Cingular Wireless/AT&T Supply Agreement (non-assignment
rights/obligations without consent other party);
-- Virgin Mobile Australia Supply Agreement (non-assignment
of rights/obligations without consent other party);
-- Telstra Sourcing Agreement Mobile Services (nonassignment of rights/obligations without consent other
party);
-- Sanshin Electronics Corporation Limited Supply Agreement
(non-assignment of rights/obligations without consent other
party);
-- Corporate Sourcing Contract France Telecom (Orange)
(non-assignment of rights/obligations without prior consent
other party).
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2. License agreements:
-- Qualcomm CDMA Modem Card License Agreement (nonassignment of rights/obligations without prior written
consent of Qualcomm – change of control falls under
definition of “assignment”);
-- Motorola License Agreement dated (non-assignment
without prior written approval Motorola);
-- Interdigital License Agreement dated (non-assignment of
rights/obligations);
-- Ericsson Global Patent License Agreement (unilateral
termination right in favor of Ericsson if more than
25% of the Company’s ownership changes by merger,
acquisition, consolidation, transfer or otherwise and the
acquirer has business within the telecommunication or
data-communication areas and as such constitutes a
major competitor of Ericsson – Ericsson has in any event
a unilateral termination right if more than 50% of the
Company’s ownership changes by merger, acquisition,
consolidation, transfer or otherwise).
- Agreements between the Company and its directors or
employees providing for compensation if they resign or are
made redundant without valid reason or if their employment
ceases because of a take-over bid
None of the agreements entered with the directors of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries contains a provision providing
for compensation if they resign or are made redundant without
valid reason or if their mandate is terminated because of a takeover bid.
The service agreement of John Patrick Ziegler provides for a
success fee in the following events:
(1) Change of control prior to a grant of warrants/subscription
rights (success fee equal to: 50,000 x (share price – 5.50
EUR) with a maximum of 200,000 EUR), and
(2) Termination at will by the Company without new service
agreement.

EVENTS THAT COULD INFLUENCE THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE
GROUP: OVERVIEW OF RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
In accordance with Article 96 of the Belgian Company Code, the
annual report must describe the main risks and uncertainties
that Option is confronted with. While most of such risks and
uncertainties are related to the evolution of the market in which
the Group is active as further outlined in the Review of Operations
we would like to specifically mention the following risks and
uncertainties:
(1) Option depends on third parties to offer wireless data
communications services. If these services are not deployed
as anticipated, consumers would be unable to use Option
innovative products and revenues could decline.
(2) Option is outsourcing manufacturing of its products to third
parties and can be dependent upon the development and
deployment of these third parties’ manufacturing abilities
and the overall quality of their work. The inability of any
supplier or manufacturer to fulfill Option’s supply requirement
could impact future results. Option has short term supply
commitments to its outsource manufacturers based on its
estimation of customer and market demand. Where actual
results vary from those estimates, whether due to execution
on Option’s parts or market conditions, Option could be at
commercial risk.
(3) The 2008 revenues are realized with two global groups
of companies representing respectively 24% and 16%
while in 2007, these two groups of companies represented
respectively 24% and 12%.
The Group deals with the individual affiliated companies who
are free to negotiate and manage their own contracts and
placement of purchase orders. All these affiliated companies
have different credit risk profiles and benefit from different
terms and conditions.
(4) Competition from bigger more established companies with
greater resources may prevent the Group from increasing
or maintaining its market share and could result in price
reductions and reduced revenues.
The wireless data industry is intensely competitive and
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subject to rapid technological change. Competition might
further intensify. More established and larger companies with
greater financial, technical and marketing resources can start
selling products that might compete with Company products.
Existing or future competitors may be able to respond more
quickly to technological developments and changes or may
independently develop and patent technologies and products
that are superior to those of the Group or achieve greater
acceptance due to factors such as more favorable pricing or
more efficient sales channels. If the Group would be unable
to compete effectively with competitors’ pricing strategies,
technological advances and other initiatives, its market share
and revenues may be reduced.
(5) Option may have difficulty managing its growth, which may
damage its ability to retain key personnel and to compete
effectively. Furthermore, growth outside Europe is becoming
increasingly important (Japan, US) and therefore Option
becomes exposed to local market instability and the impact of
exchange differences.
(6) The market is evolving rapidly and the product life cycles are
becoming shorter every year. In the event Option would be
unable to design and develop new innovative products that
gain sufficient commercial acceptance, the Group may be
unable to recover its research and development expenses
and Option may not be able to maintain its market share and
the revenues could decline. Furthermore, because of the
short product life cycles Option’s future growth is increasingly
dependent upon designing and developing new products that
may not have been commercially tested. The ability to design
and develop new products depends on a number of factors,
including, but not limited to the following;
-- The ability of the Group to attract and retain skilled
technical employees;
-- The availability of critical components from third parties;
-- The ability of the Group to successfully complete the
development of products in a timely manner;
-- The ability of the Group to manufacture products at an
acceptable price and quality.
A failure by Option or its suppliers in any of these areas, or
a failure of these products to obtain commercial acceptance,
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could result in Option being unable to recover its research
and development expenses and could result in a decrease in
bottom line result.
(7) Going concern. The Board of Directors is from the opinion that,
notwithstanding the existence over the last two financial years
of losses carried forward, the use of going concern valuation
rules is justified, based upon the facts that:
-- There is a budget that appears realistic and conservative;
-- The continued focus on cost reduction for which it is
expected that overall expenses will be reduced with 20%
compared to 2008;
-- The Group's ongoing efforts to secure additional liquidity in
order to strengthen the Groups cash position and secure its
future working capital needs.
-- The Group operates in the wireless data segment, one
of the most important growth areas for the Telecom
sector. The growth potential is further evidenced by the
development of new product categories, such as MIDs
(Mobile Internet Devices) in which the Group is ideally
positioned to play a leading role as one of the innovators in
this segment.
The budget prepared by the management and approved by the
Board of Directors has a realistic and conservative approach.
(8) We may infringe on the intellectual property rights of others.
The industry in which we operate has many participants
that own, or claim to own, proprietary intellectual property.
In the past we have received, and in the future may receive
assertions or claims from third parties alleging that our
products violate or infringe their intellectual property rights.
The Company may be subject to these claims directly or
through indemnities against these claims which the Company
has provided to certain customers. Regardless of the merit of
these infringement claims, we may be subject to the following:
- We may be liable for potentially substantial damages,
liabilities and litigation costs, including attorneys’ fees;
- We may be prohibited from further use of the intellectual
property and may be required to cease selling our products
that are subject to the claim;
- We may have to license the third party intellectual
property, incurring royalty fees that may or may not be on
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commercially reasonable terms. In addition, there is no
assurance that we will be able to successfully negotiate and
obtain such a license from the third party;
- We may have to develop a non-infringing alternative, which
could be costly and delay or result in the loss of sales.
In addition, there is no assurance that we will be able to
develop such a non-infringing alternative;
- The diversion of management’s attention and resources;
- We may be required to indemnify our customers for certain
costs and damages they incur in such a claim.

The Group has a credit facility for EUR 10 million which was not
available under the current covenants and no other loans.

CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS
The conflict of interest procedure foreseen in article 523 of the
Belgian Code of Companies was not applied in 2008.
For an overview of the transactions with affiliated parties are
concerned, we refer to explanatory note 22 of the annual report.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISKS
STATEMENT
Derivative financial instruments are used to reduce the exposure
to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. These instruments
are subject to the risk of market rates changing subsequent to
acquisition. The risks of these changes are generally offset by the
opposite effects of hedging, however not all financial risks can be
fully hedged.
Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. The credit risk is monitored on a continuous
basis.
The Group is not subject to material interest risk. As in 2007, the
Group has no floating rate financial assets or liabilities and interest
rate derivatives.
The Group is subject to material currency risk, as the larger part of
its purchase transactions is in US dollars. The Group aims to match
foreign currency cash inflows with foreign cash outflows. In 2008,
the Group entered into derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure on the US dollar cash flows. The effect of the foreign
exchange contracts has been recognized as exchange rate gains/
losses in the income statement.

The Board, to the best of their knowledge, declares the following:
a) The annual financial statements were prepared in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards and give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit
or loss of the Company and of the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole;
b) The annual report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as
a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.

Leuven, 19 March 2009
The Board of Directors

As indicated above, the wireless data industry is increasingly
competitive and subject to rapid technological change. The arrival
of more established and larger companies, as well as the rapid
technological change may create price erosion and affect Option’s
margins and profitability.
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The Capital of the Company is represented by 41 249 296 shares.
The shares are listed on the stock exchange ”Euronext Brussels”
under the code BE0003836534.
At year-end 2008, all shares, save 1 (one) - which existed in
registered form -, were dematerialized.
At year-end 2008, the Company had the following significant
shareholders:

Identity of the person, entity or group
of persons or entities (*)

Number of
shares

Percentage of
financial
instruments
held

Jan Callewaert and Pepper NV
(100% owned by Jan Callewaert)

7 154 504

17.34 %

Free float of which:
UBS (Switzerland)
SISU Capital Ltd (United Kingdom)
SR Global Fund LP (Cayman Islands)
Goldman Sachs (USA)
Neuberger Berman LLC (USA)
Total outstanding shares

34 094 792
1 283 492
1 331 495
1 457 500
1 518 572
2 655 289
41 249 296

82.66%
3.11%
3.23%
3.53%
3.68%
6.43%
100%

(*) Each class of the voting financial instruments of the Company,
for each person, entity or group of persons, that represents at least
3% or more either directly or indirectly.
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The Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting held on 26 August 2008
authorized to withdraw and destroy the 2 200 000 naked warrants
“U” in order to issue 2 500 000 naked warrants “V”. The new plan
“V” was approved, granting warrants to Directors, members of
personnel and other persons designated by name (as listed in the
warrant plan “V”). Per year-end 2008, 2 241 540 warrants “V”
have been granted (665 000 on August 26, 2008 and 1 576 540
on December 23, 2008) of which 665 000 have been accepted by
the Board of Directors and members of the Executive Management
Team. After balance sheet date 1 169 750 warrants “V” have been
accepted by employees and other persons designated
by name.
DISCUSSION OF THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
The consolidated accounts include the following subsidiaries:
-- Option Wireless Ltd, Cork (Ireland)
-- Option Germany GmbH, Adelsried (Germany)
-- Option Wireless Germany GmbH, Kamp-Lintfort (Germany)
-- Option Japan KK (Japan)
-- Option Wireless Hong Kong Limited (China)
-- Option Wireless Hong Kong Ltd. (Suzhou)
Representation Office (China)
-- Option Wireless Hong Kong Limited Taiwan Branch (Taiwan).
-- Option Inc. (United States of America)
-- Multi Mode Multi Media Solutions (M4S) (Belgium)
During 2008, the Swedish subsidiary “Option Wireless Sweden AB”
has been liquidated.
On the 25th of June 2008, the “Group” acquired Multi Mode
Multi Media Solutions (abbreviated “M4S”), a spin off of IMEC
and specialized in the 4G development of parts related to radio
frequencies. A Purchase Price Allocation exercise is currently in
process. For further information, we refer to note 24.

REVENUES
Revenues for 2008 decreased by 11% to EUR 268 089k, compared
with EUR 301 507k in 2007.
GEOGRAPHICAL SPREAD OF SALES
We refer to the note 3 Business segments and geographical spread
of the financial statements in this annual report for additional
information about the geographical spread of sales.
GROSS MARGIN
Gross margin in the full year 2008 was 27.8% on total revenues,
compared with gross margin of 29.6 % in 2007. Costs of products
sold of EUR 193 458k during 2008 resulted in a gross profit of EUR
74 630k, a decrease of 16.3% compared to EUR 89 207k in 2007.
OPERATING EXPENSES
The operating expenses for the full year 2008, including
depreciation and amortization charges were EUR 103 929k
compared to EUR 86 673k for the previous year.
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (EBIT)
During 2008, EBIT decreased to EUR -29 299k (or -10.9% on
revenues), compared to EUR 2 534k (or 0.8% on revenues)
of 2007.
EBITDA
EBITDA amounted to EUR -91k (or -0% on revenues) for the full
year 2008, compared to EUR 22 438k (or 7.4% on revenues) of
2007 representing a decrease of EUR 22 529k.
FINANCE RESULT
During 2008, Option obtained a negative financial result of EUR
-540k. The net exchange rate result, amounted to EUR -1 697k
and were mainly due to USD and GBP fluctuations. Option received
EUR 813k from risk free investments of the available cash.
A positive result of EUR 573k was obtained in relation to the
expired derivative financial instruments.he Other financial costs of
EUR -229k are mainly related to paid interests and bank charges.

NET RESULT AND EARNINGS PER SHARE
The earnings per share were as follows in 2008:
Net result, for the full year 2008, amounted to EUR -19 001k or
EUR –0.46 per basic and diluted share This compares to a net
profit of EUR 6 432k or EUR 0.16 per basic and diluted share
during 2007. Net result decreased by EUR 25 433k compared
to 2007.
BALANCE SHEET
Total assets amounted to EUR 171 094k compared to EUR
185 988k at the end of the previous year.
Cash and cash equivalents decreased over the year from EUR
36 299k to EUR 33 328k at the end of 2008.
Trade and other receivables decreased from EUR 54 991k at the
end of 2007 to EUR 44 819k at the end of 2008.
This decrease was attributable to the trade receivables which
decreased from EUR 53 380k to EUR 42 857k and the increase in
other receivables mainly due to higher VAT receivables.
The trade receivable portfolio is sound. Most sales in non-OECD
countries are covered by letters of credit or by credit insurance,
provided by Delcredere. As an autonomous body, guaranteed by the
Belgian Government, Delcredere’s role is to promote international
economic relations by covering risks relating to exports to, imports
from and investments in non-OECD countries.
Inventories decreased from EUR 39 251k at the end of last year to
EUR 32 894k at the end of 2008.
The decrease is explained by a combination of an increase of the
work in progress and finished goods of EUR 3 681k, a decrease
in the raw material position, being EUR 8 315k and an increase of
write offs on inventories, being EUR 1 723k compared to 2007.
The net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets was EUR
37 031k at the end of 2008, compared with EUR 40 601k as at
31 December 2007. During 2008, the total investments in tangible
assets, mainly test equipment, amounted to EUR 2 833k (2007:
EUR 11 467k) and the Group invested EUR 23 010k (2007: EUR
20 931k) in intangible assets of which EUR 21 943k (2007: EUR
17 699k) for capitalized development projects and EUR 1 067k
(2007: EUR 3 232k) mainly due to additional licenses
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Total current liabilities increased during the year to EUR 69 983k in
2008, compared with EUR 67 129k in 2007.
This increase is mainly driven by an increase in trade and other
payables (+EUR 8 794k) and a decrease in provisions, other
financial liabilities and income tax payable (- EUR 5 940k).
The Group generated a deferred tax liability mainly as a result of
the capitalization of the commercial development projects under
IFRS. In 2008, this deferred tax liability increased by EUR 1 322k
which was nearly fully related to development projects.
The deferred tax assets were EUR 22 413k at the end of 2008 or
an increase of EUR 11 080k compared to year end 2007, mainly
resulting from tax losses carried forward in 2008.
On a balance sheet total of EUR 171 094k, the total shareholders’
equity amounted to EUR 99 082k. Therefore, at the end of 2008,
the Group solvency ratio was 57.9%, compared to 63.5% in 2007.
The cash flow generated from operating activities during 2008
amounted to EUR 22 578k compared to EUR 32 765k in the
previous year.
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APPROPRIATION OF THE NON-CONSOLIDATED RESULT
The statutory accounts of Option NV (Belgian GAAP) reported a net
loss for the year 2008 of EUR -39 124k, compared with a net loss
of EUR -12 767k in 2007.
The Board of Directors proposes to carry forward the nonconsolidated net loss of EUR -39 124k of 2008.

Profit/ (loss) carried forward from
previous year
Profit/ (loss) for the period available
for appropriation
Profit/ (loss) to be appropriated
Legal reserve

2008

Consolidated Income Statement
Year ended 31 December

Revenues
Cost of products sold
Gross Profit

Abridged appropriation account
(According to Belgian Accounting Standards)
31 December - in thousands EUR

Consolidated Financial Statements

2008

2007

Note

€000

€000

3
4

268 089
(193 458)
74 630

301 507
(212 300)
89 207

4-5
4-5
4-5

(42 749)
(41 375)
(19 806)
(103 929)

(31 159
(38 600)
(16 914)
(86 673)

(29 299)
(2 477)
1 937
(540)

2 534
(2 255)
2 393
138

(29 839)

2 672

10 838

3 760

(19 001)

6 432

41 249 296
41 249 296

41 249 296
41 249 296

(0.46)
(0.46)

0.16
0.16

2007

12 410

25 177

(39 124)

(12 767)

(26 714)
-

12 410
-

Research and Development expenses
Sales, marketing and royalties expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total Operating expenses
Result from operations
Finance costs
Finance income
Finance result-net

6
6

Profit / (loss) before income taxes
Tax benefits (expenses)

7

Net Result
Earnings per share
Basic weighted average number of ordinary shares
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares
Basic earnings / (loss) per share
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share
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18
18
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended 31 December
Note

2008

2007

€000

€000

Year ended 31 December

2008

2007

€000

€000

(19 001)
15 001
6 499
157
4 090
7 707
(1 639)

6 432
12 909
5 015
16
10 368
1 980
5 976

(473)

(473)

(398)
(813)
149
154
(10 838)
19 596
595

796
(1 140)
124
(3 760)
31 811
38 243

Decrease / (increase) in inventories
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables
Use of provisions
Total changes in working capital (D)

1 888
10 860
7 206
(1 900)
18 054

1 322
(13 878)
14 781
2 225

Cash generated from operations (E)=(C) + (D)
Interests (paid) (F)
Interests received (G)
Income tax (paid)/received (H)

18 649
(29)
1 217
2 741

40 468
(87)
1 133
(8 749)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (I)=(E)+(F)+(G)+(H)

22 578

32 765

(1 067)
(21 943)

(3 232)
(17 699)

Note
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

ASSETS
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Other non current assets
Total non-current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Income tax receivable
Total current assets

8
9
7
10

20 740
16 291
22 413
383
59 827

20 462
20 139
11 333
82
52 016

11
10
12
13
7

32 894
44 819
33 328
0
227
111 268

39 251
54 991
36 299
473
2 958
133 972

171 094

185 988

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Issued capital
Share premium
Reserves
Retained earnings
Total shareholders’ equity

17
17
17
17

6 116
43 865
352
48 749
99 082

6 116
43 865
363
67 750
118 094

Deferred tax liabilities
Other non current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

7
13

2 013
16
2 029

691
74
765

Trade and other payables
Provisions
Other financial liabilities
Income tax payable

14
15
13

67 353
2 437
89
104

58 559
5 976
1 021
1 573

69 983

67 129

171 094

185 988

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
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Net Result (A)
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Loss/(gains) on sale of property, plant and equipment
(Reversal of) write-offs on current assets
Impairment losses
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Loss/(gain) on reevaluation of fair value through profit or loss financial
assets
Unrealized foreign exchange losses/(gains)
Interest (income)
Interest expense
Equity settled share based payment expense
Tax benefit
Total (B)
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital
(C)=(A)+(B)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of intangible assets
Expenditures on product development

8
9

8
15

6
6
17
7

8
8
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
CASH FLOW USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (K)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents = (I)+(J)+(K)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange difference
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Difference

9
9

(2 833)
22
(25 821)

(11 467)
(27)
(32 425)

13
13

29
(75)
(46)

(74)
(74)

(3 288)
36 299
317
33 328
(3 288)

266
36 062
(29)
36 299
266

12
12

Consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity

Thousands EUR

Note

At 1 January 2007
Net result
Translation adjustment

17

At 31 December 2007
Net result
Share based payments
Translation adjustment
At 31 December 2008

17
17

Issued capital

Share premium

Share-based
payment reserve

6 116

43 865

360

(25)

61 318

111 634

-

-

-

28

6 432
-

6 432
28

6 116

43 865

360

3

67 750

118 094

-

-

153
-

(164)

(19 001)
-

(19 001)
153
(164)

6 116

43 865

513

Foreign currency
translation reserves

(161)

Retained
earnings

Total

48 749

99 082

Option NV (hereafter the Company) is active in the telecom sector,
specialized in the design, development, manufacture and sale of
wireless data communication devices such as data cards, USB
dongles, wireless routers and (embedded) modules. The Company
was incorporated on 3 July 1986 and has been publicly listed since
November 1997, first on the European stock exchange (“Easdaq”
later “Nasdaq Europe”) and since 2003 on the Eurolist of Euronext
Brussels (Ticker: OPTI - code BE0003836534).
Option NV has the legal form of a public limited company
(Naamloze Vennootschap (NV) whose shares were offered for
sale to the public and is incorporated under Belgian law. Its
headquarters are located in Belgium (Gaston Geenslaan 14, 3001
Leuven). Option NV is present in different continents around the
world. The main companies are the headquarters located in Leuven
and the manufacturing and supply chain site in Cork (Ireland). A
complete list of all the subsidiaries of the Company can be found at
the end of this annual report (see note 24 Option companies).
The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2008 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter jointly referred to as “Option” or the
“Group”). The financial statements were authorized for issue by the
board of directors on 19 March 2009 and signed on its behalf by
Mr. Jan Callewaert.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments that have been measured at fair value.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in euros
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (€000) except
otherwise stated.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are consolidated from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses
are also eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES
Based on a review on its financial statements, the Group has
changed the presentation and classification of some items on the
face of the:
-- income statement: change in presentation of the cash discounts;
-- balance sheet: disclosure of other financial assets and liabilities
and netting of the outstanding trade receivable amounts of two
main subcontractors against their outstanding trade payable
amounts, based on an agreement between those subcontractors
and the Group (effect 2008 : EUR 5 253k); and
-- cash flow statement: breakdown of amortisation and
depreciation costs.
Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and adopted by the European Union.
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all the subsidiaries controlled by
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the Company. IAS 27 states that control exists when the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
and obtains the benefits from the entities’ activities. Control is
presumed to exist when the Company owns, directly or indirectly,
more than 50 % of an entity’s voting rights of the share capital.
Option NV has a 100% stake in all its subsidiaries (cfr Note 24).

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
previous financial year except as follows:
The IASB has issued the following new and amended IFRS and
IFRIC interpretations
-- IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions;
-- IFRIC 12 – Service Concession Arrangements (not yet endorsed by
EU - expected on Q1 2009, interpretation applicable for 2009);
-- IFRIC 14 IAS 19 – The Limit on the Defined benefits Asset,
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Minumum Funding Requirements and their interaction (endorsed
by EU December 2008, applicable for 2009);
-- IFRIC 13 - Customer Loyalty Programs, effective for financial
years beginning on or after 1 July 2008.
-- IAS 39 and IFRS 7 - Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7), effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 July 2008;
-- IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation,
effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 October 2008
but not yet endorsed by EU (expected on Q2 2009, interpretation
applicable for 2009).
These standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the
financial performance or position of the Group, except IFRIC 11.
This gives rise to additional disclosures, including, in some cases,
revisions to accounting policies.
The principal effects of these changes are as follows:
IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share transactions.
The group had adopted IFRIC Interpretation 11 insofar as to
consolidated financial statements. This interpretation requires
arrangements whereby an employee is granted rights to an entity’s
equity instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled
scheme, even if the entity buys the instruments from another party,
or the shareholders provide the equity instruments needed. The
Group amended its accounting policy accordingly. The Group has
issued instruments affected by this interpretation. (See Note 17 –
Shareholders’ Equity).
IFRIC 12 – Service Concession Arrangements.
The IFRIC issued IFRIC 12 in November 2006. This interpretation
applies to service concession operators and explains how to account
for the obligations undertaken and rights received in service concession
arrangements. No member of the Group is an operator and, therefore,
this interpretation has no impact on the Group.
IFRIC 14 IAS 19 – The Limit on the Defined benefits Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their interaction.
IFRIC Interpretation 14 provides guidance on how to assess the
limit on the amount of surplus in a defined benefits scheme that
can be recognized as an asset under IAS 1 Employee Benefits.
The Group does not have defined benefits schemes, therefore
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the adoption of this interpretation had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
IFRIC 13 - Customer Loyalty Programs.
IFRIC issued IFRIC 13 in June 2007. This interpretation requires
customer loyalty credits to be accounted for as separate
components of the sales transaction in which they are granted. No
customer loyalty programs are issued by the Group, therefore, this
interpretation has no impact on the performance of the Group.
Amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Instruments were issued in October 2008. These
amendments permit reclassification of non-derivative financial
assets classified as held for trading (ie not designated) out of
the category at FVTPL and permit reclassification of financial
assets from AFS to L&R, if definition of L&R is met and if there is
intention/ability to hold for the foreseeable future.
A company shall apply those amendments from on or after 1 July
2008. Any reclassification of a financial asset made in periods
beginning on or after 1 November 2008 shall take effect only from
the date when the reclassification is made. Any reclassification
of a financial asset shall not be applied retrospectively before 1
July 2008. No member of the Group has these instruments and,
therefore, these amendments have no impact on the Group.
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
was issued in July 2008 and becomes effective for financial
years beginning on or after 1 October 2008. The interpretation
is to be applied prospectively. IFRIC 16 provides guidance on the
accounting for a hedge of a net investment. As such it provides
guidance on identifying the foreign currency risks that qualify for
hedge in the hedge of a net investment and how an entity should
determine the amount of foreign currency gain or loss; relating to
both the net investment and the hedging instrument, to be recycled
on disposal of the net investment. No member of the Group has
these instruments and, therefore, these amendments have no
impact on the Group.
Early adoption of Standards and Interpretations
The Group has elected not to adopt any Standards or
interpretations in advance of their effective dates.

Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted
At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the
following Standards and interpretations were in issue but not
yet effective:
-- IAS 1 Revised Presentation of Financial Statements.
The revised Standards was issued in September 2007 and
becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1
January 2009. The Standards separates owner and non-owner
changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity will
include only details of transactions with owners, with non-owners
change in equity The Group is still evaluating whether it will have
one or two statements for the 2009 financial statements
-- IFRS 2 Share-based Payment – Vesting conditions and cancellations
(Revised).
The IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 2 in January 2008
that clarifies the definition of a vesting condition and prescribes
the treatment for an award that is effectively cancelled. This
interpretation becomes effective for financial years beginning on
or after 1 January 2009. It did not have an impact on the financial
position of performance of the Group as no events occurred that this
interpretation relates to.
-- IFRS 8 Operating Segments (applicable for accounting years
beginning on or after 1 January 2009).
This standard requires disclosure of information about the Group's
operating segments and replaced the requirement to determine
primary (business) and secondary (geographical) reporting segments
of the Group. The Group expects that IFRS 8 will not have a major
impact.
-- IAS 23 Borrowing Costs.
A revised IAS 23 Borrowing costs was issued in March 2007,
and becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after
1 January 2009. The standard has been revised to require
capitalization of borrowing costs when such costs relate to a
qualifying asset. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. In accordance with the transitional requirements in
the Standard, the Group will adopt this as a prospective change.
Accordingly, borrowing costs will be capitalized on qualifying assets
with a commencement date after 1 January 2009. No changes will

be made for borrowing costs incurred to this date that have been
expensed.
-- Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards and IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements.
The amendments to IFRS 1 allow an entity to determine the ‘cost’ of
investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or associates
in its opening IFRS financial statements in accordance with IAS
27 or using a deemed cost. The amendment to IAS 27 requires all
dividends from a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate to
be recognized in the income statement of the separate financial
statement. Both revisions will be effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The requirements do not
have impact on the consolidated financial statements.
-- IFRS 3R Business Combinations and IAS 27R Consolidated and
Separate Financial statements.
The revised standards were issued in January 2008 and become
effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
IFRS 3R introduces a number of changes in the accounting for
business combinations occurring after this date that will impact the
amount of goodwill recognized. IAS 27R requires that a change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is
accounted for as an equity transaction. The standards may be early
applied. However, the Group does not intend to take advantage of
this possibility.
-- IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements – Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation.
These amendments to IAS 32 and IAS 1 were issued in February
2008 and become effective for financial years beginning on or after
1 January 2009. The revisions provide a limited scope exception for
puttable instruments to be classified as equity if they fulfill a number
of specified features. The amendments to the standards will have no
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group, as the
Group has not issued such instruments.
-- IAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement –
Eligible Hedged Items.
These amendments to IAS 39 were issued in August 2008 and
become effective for financial years beginning on or after 1
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NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

January 2009. The amendment addresses the designation of a
one-sided risk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation as
a hedged risk or portion in particular situations. It clarifies that an
entity is permitted to designate a portion of the fair value changes
or cash flow variability of the financial instrument as hedged item.
The Group has concluded that the amendment will have no impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
-- Improvements to IFRS’s.
In May 2008 the Board issued its first omnibus of amendments
to its standards, primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. The Group has not yet
adopted the amendments and is still evaluating whether it will
have impacts.
-- IFRIC 15 Agreement for the construction of real estate.
IFRIC 15 was issued in July 2008 and becomes effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The
interpretation is to be applied retrospectively. It clarifies when
and how revenue and related expenses from the sale of a real
estate unit should be recognized if an agreement between a
developer and a buyer is reached before the construction of the
real estate is completed. IFRIC 15 will not have an impact on the
consolidated financial statement because the Group does not
conduct such activity.
The impact of drafts of standards or interpretations currently being
studied by the IASB and the IFRIC were not anticipated in these
financial statements.
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of these financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date.
The Group uses estimates in its normal course of business to
evaluate the warranty, excess and obsolete inventory, the doubtful
debtors, the useful life of R&D projects, the valuation of intellectual
properties, the derivative financial instruments and other reserves.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that
have significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
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statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in the relevant
notes hereafter.
Operating Lease as Lessor
The Group has entered into a sublease of own leased premises
to a third party; the agreement came to an end at December 31,
2008. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the
terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and
so accounts for the contract as operating lease.
Going concern
The Group is from the opinion that, notwithstanding the existence
since the last two financial years of losses carried forward, the use
of going concern valuation rules is justified, based on the facts
that:
-- there is a budget that appears realistic and conservative;
-- the continues focus on cost reduction for which it is expected
that overall expenses will be reduced with 20%
-- compared to 2008;
-- the Groups ongoing efforts to secure additional liquidity in order
to strengthen the Groups cash position and
-- secure its future working capital needs.
-- the Group operates in the wireless data segment, one of the
most important growth areas for the Telecomsector. The growth
potential is further evidenced by the development of new product
categories, such as MID (Mobile Internet Devices) in which the
Group is ideally positioned to play a leading role as one of the
innovators in this segment.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised if there is a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
the assets and liabilities within next financial year.
Development costs
Development costs are capitalized in accordance with the
accounting policy in Note 2. Initial capitalization of costs is based
on management's judgment that technological and economical
feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project
has reached a defined milestone according to an established

project management model. In determining the amounts to be
capitalized management makes assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to
be applied and the expected period of benefits. At 31 December
2008, the best estimate of the carrying amount of capitalized
development costs was EUR 17 508k (2007: EUR 16 578k), see
note 8 for further details.
Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at each reporting date. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. At 31 December 2008, the
company has recognized impairment losses on the capitalized
development projects for EUR 7 707k (2007: EUR 1 980 k), Further
details, including a sensitivity analysis of key assumptions, are
given in Note 8.
Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and
other timing differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgment is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of recognised
tax losses at 31 December 2008 was EUR 47 870k (2007: EUR
17 026k). These losses do not expire and may not be used to
offset taxable income elsewhere in the Group. Further details are
contained in Note 7.
Warranty provision
The Group estimates the cost for the warranty coverage by
applying statistical techniques on the sales recorded. The warranty
period is between 12 and 24 months, determined by the location
of the customer. As 31 December 2008, the estimated provision
for warranty is EUR 847k (2007: EUR 1 259k). Further details are
given in Note 15.

(1) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
The individual financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in euro,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
All companies within the Group have the euro as their functional
currency, except for:
-- the Japanese subsidiary for which its functional currency is
the Japanese Yen;
-- the Hong Kong, US and Taiwanese subsidiaries for which
the functional currency is respectively the US dollar and
New Taiwan dollar; and
-- The Swedish subsidiary for which its functional currency is
the Swedish Krona
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than euro are recorded at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the balance
sheet date rate. Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement of the
period.
TRANSLATION OF THE RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION
OF FOREIGN OPERATIONS
For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations (US,
Japanese, Swedish, Hong Kong and Taiwanese subsidiaries) are
translated to euro at foreign exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period unless exchange
rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. The
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components of shareholders’ equity are translated at historical
rates. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity
and recognized in the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve.
Such exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

(2) REVENUE RECOGNITION
The Group generates its revenue mainly from the sales of its
products, ie data cards, USB Devices, router, embedded wireless
modules and software products.
Customers of the Group are Value added Resellers, Original
Equipment Manufacturers, wireless service providers, global
operators and end-users.
Revenue from products is recognized by the Group when
-- persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
-- the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the products sold;
-- the entity has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;
-- the amount of revenue (the price) can be measured reliably,
-- collection of the price is reasonably assured (it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the entity), and
-- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
If any of these criteria are not met, recognition of revenues is
deferred until such time as all of the criteria are met.Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding
discounts, rebates, and other sales taxes or duty.
The Company’s product sales are generally not sold with a right of
return unless the product is defective and covered by the warranty
clause (See also Note 15).
The Company’s sales typically include multiple product and/
or service elements such as technical support for its products.
In that case the total revenue is allocated to the fair value of
the individual elements, each of which are then recognized in
accordance with the accounting principle applicable to that
element. Where the fair value of one or more of the elements
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cannot be determined, the revenue is spread over the expected
remaining contractual lifetime.
Although the products sold have embedded software, the Group
believes that software is incidental to the products they provide.
Revenues from services are recognized when the services are
performed, when there is no material continuing performance
and collection is reasonably assured. Revenues on service
arrangements contingent on final customer acceptance are
deferred until such acceptance has been received, and all
other criteria for revenue recognition have been met. The costs
associated with these arrangements are recognized as incurred.
A part of the company's revenues have been derived from
collaboration agreements. Pursuant to such collaborations, the
group agrees to conduct research and test projects, as defined in
the contract.
Most of these agreements provide for upfront fees for technology
access, license fees and significant milestone fees.
Upfront non-refundable fees are only recognized as revenue at fair
value when products are delivered and/or services are rendered
in a separate transaction and the Group has fulfilled all conditions
and obligations under the related agreement. In case of continuing
involvement of the Group, the upfront fee would not be regarded
as a separate transaction and the upfront non refundable fees will
be deferred at fair value over the period of the collaboration.
Research milestone earnings are recognized as revenues when
irrevocably earned, unless the Group has continuing involvement
in the program. In such case the milestone revenue is only
recognized in full to the extent cost has been incurred in light of
the overall estimated project revenues and expenses.
Deferred revenue is recorded when cash in advance is received
before the above revenue recognition criteria are met.
A limited number of sales contracts entitle customers to a
subsequent credit note in case of price erosion during a specific
period after the initial sale. Subsequently granted discounts
resulting from this type of contract clauses are estimated at the
time of the initial sale and netted against revenue.
Any cash discount is netted against revenue.

(3) ROYALTIES BASED ON THE SALE OF PRODUCTS
Under license agreements, the Group is committed to make
royalty payments for the use of certain patented technologies
in wireless data communication. The Group recognizes royalty
obligations as determinable in accordance with agreement terms
with those patent holders. Royalty obligations are recognized in the
income statement in the caption “sales, marketing and royalties
expenses”.

(4) TAXES
Income tax charge on the profit or loss for the year comprises
current and deferred taxation. Income tax is recognized in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in
equity.
-- Current income tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year. Taxable base differs from net base as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the
balance sheet date. For further details see Note 7.
-- Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance
sheet liability method, for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying values for financial reporting purposes. Enacted
or substantially enacted tax rates are used to determine
deferred income tax.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences only to
the extent that it is probable for management that future
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
For further details see Note 7.

(5) INVENTORIES
Raw materials (mainly electronic components) and work in
progress are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.
Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis. Finished goods
inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and where applicable,
direct labors costs and those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
The Group recognizes consignment stock in its balance sheet
unless there has been a substantial transfer of the risks and
rewards of ownership to the consignee.
The Group reviews inventories of slow-moving or obsolete items
on an ongoing basis and creates allowances if needed.

(6) PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The Group’s property, plant and equipment, including dedicated
production equipment, is recorded at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as
a separate asset as appropriate only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. When a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
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amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are as follows:
Machinery and computer equipment > 2 to 10 years
Furniture and Vehicles > 5 years
Leasehold improvements > 3 to 9 years
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included in short and long-term payables. The interest element
is charged to the income statement over the lease period. Assets
under finance lease are depreciated over the useful life of the
assets according to the rules set out by the Group. In case where
it is not certain that the Group will acquire the ownership of the
asset at the end of the lease term, depreciation is spread over the
shorter of the lease term and the useful life of the asset.
Operating lease
Leases under which a substantial part of risks and rewards of
ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating lease are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. For further details see Note 16.

(8) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each balance sheet date, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
Assets under construction are stated at cost. This includes cost of
construction, plant and equipment and other direct costs. Assets
under construction are not depreciated until such time as the
relevant assets are available for their intended use, at which stage
the assets are also reclassified towards the relevant category
within property, plant and equipment.

(7) LEASES
Lease operations can be divided into two types of lease:
Finance lease
Leases under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. They
are measured at the lower of fair value and the present value of
the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Each lease payment is apportioned between reduction of the
lease obligation and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
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Intangible assets acquired separately are measured upon initial
recognition at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible
assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not
capitalised and expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the year
in which the expenditure is incurred.
Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
is reviewed at least at each financial year end.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
(A) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS AND RELATED
GOVERNMENT RESEARCH FUNDING
Research expenditure is recognized as an expense as
incurred.
The Group follows the cost reduction method of accounting
for government research funding whereby the benefit of the
funding is recognized as a reduction in the cost of the related

expenditure when certain criteria stipulated under the terms
of those funding agreements have been met, and there is
reasonable assurance the grants will be received.
Costs incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognized
as intangible assets pursuant IAS 38 Intangible Assets if
following criteria of compliance are met and the Group can
demonstrate:
-- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
-- its intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;
-- its ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
-- how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits (e.g. existence of a market or, if it is
to be used internally, the usefulness of the intangible
asset);
-- the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resource to complete the development and to use
or sell the intangible asset; and
-- its ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

been capitalized are amortized from the commencement
of the commercial shipment of the certified product on a
straight-line basis over the period of its expected benefit,
not exceeding two years.Capitalization of development costs
as detailed above creates a taxable temporary difference.
Accordingly, a deferred tax liability is accounted for in this
respect.
(B) OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The Group’s other intangible assets include
-- Concessions, patents and licenses, and
-- Software for Material Requirements Planning (MRP) and
consolidation purposes.
These are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which are from 1,5 to 5 years depending to
the specific licence or software. The estimated useful life and
amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

(9) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
The amount initially recognized for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
assets can be recognized, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately. The
amortization of capitalized development costs is recognized
in the income statement under the caption “Research and
Development costs”.
Other development expenditures are recognized as an
expense as incurred. Research and Development costs
recognized in the previous accounting year as an expense
cannot be recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.
Development costs that have a finite useful life that have

The Group assesses at each reporting date whenever events or
changes in circumstances occur to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate
cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
For intangible assets initially recognized that no longer meet the
criteria described for research and development costs (Accounting
policy 8A) an impairment loss is recognized. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
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cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the
income statement.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the income
statement.

(10) PROVISIONS
A provision is recognized when:
-- there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event;
-- it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
-- a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
If these conditions are not met, no provision is recognized.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When some or all of the economic
benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it
is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
Warranty provision
The Group provides warranty coverage on its products from date
of shipment and/or date of sale to the end customer. The warranty
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period is in line with the applicable legislation and ranges from
12 to 24 months, determined by the location of the customer.
The Group’s policy is to accrue the estimated cost of warranty
coverage at the time the sale is recorded.
The warranty on sales from the e-shop of the Group and sales
outside European Union are limited to one year only.

(11) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are held in separate trustee-administered funds or
group insurances. Payments for these defined contribution plans
are recognized as a current year charge.

(12) SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation
plans through which it grants share options (here after referred to
as “warrants”) to employees, contractors and directors. The cost
of equity-settled transactions with employees for awards granted
are measured by reference to the fair value at the grant date. The
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the warrants granted,
measured using the Black & Scholes model, taking into account
the terms and conditions at which the warrants were granted. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of warrants that are expected to become exercisable
except where forfeiture is only due to shares not achieving the
threshold for vesting. It recognizes the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the income statement, and a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting
period. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium when the warrants are exercised.
Further details are given in Note 17.

(13) FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITITES
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the
Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

(14) BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

(15) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Trade and other receivables
Trade debtors and other amounts receivable are shown on the
balance sheet at nominal value (in general, the original amount
invoiced) less an allowance for doubtful debts.
Such an allowance is recorded in the income statement when it
is probable that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due. Customers for which overdue amounts rise from commercial
discussions, are provided against revenue. In those cases, where
the credit risk arise from the possibility that customers may
not be able to settle their obligations as agreed, are provided
against an allowance for doubtful debtors. Even if one particular
brand or a global mobile operator would represent a substantial
percentage of the Group’s trade receivables, the Group is dealing
with the individual affiliated operator who is free to negotiate and
manage its own contracts and placement of purchase orders. All
these affiliated operators have different credit risk profiles and
benefit from different terms and conditions. Other receivables
are stated at their nominal value (in general, the original amount
invoiced) less an allowance for doubtful debts if deemed
necessary.
Trade and other payables
Trade payables and other payables are stated at amortized cost.
This is computed using the effective interest method less any
allowance for impairment.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash and term deposits. Highly liquid investments
with maturity of three months or less at date of purchase are
considered cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist primarily of
term deposits with a number of commercial banks with high credit
ratings. For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits
as defined above.

The Group uses derivatives financial instruments such as forward
currency contracts to hedge its foreign market risk. These
derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value through the income
statement. For financial instruments where there is no active
market, an appropriate valuation technique is used to determine
the fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when
the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value on derivatives during the year that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are taken directly to profit or loss.

(16) EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic net earnings per share is computed based on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted net earnings per share is computed based on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding including the
dilutive effect of warrants.

(17) SEGMENT REPORTING
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments. Segment results include revenue and expenses directly
attributable to a segment and the relevant portion of revenue
and expenses that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to a
segment. Segment assets and liabilities comprise those operating
assets and liabilities that are directly attributable to the segment or
can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis.
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NOTE 3: BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SPREAD

NOTE 4: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURE

Segment assets and liabilities do not include Income tax items.Segment
information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and
geographical segments. The Group is following up on its activities
on a project-by-project basis, whereby each project includes one or
more products with similar technologies.

Most of the equipment sales occur under global or international
mobile brands and are invoiced to their local, national and
partnership network operators or established outsourced equipment
manufacturers, resulting in a spread risk of a solid portfolio of
sound and different accounts receivable.

As from 2004, Option evolved to a Group with only one remaining
business segment, namely equipment sales. Although Option
has an extended product range, the Group believes that they can
be looked at as belonging to a single operating segment as the
products have similar economic characteristics and they are similar
in each of the following categories:
-- the nature of the products
-- the nature of the production processes
-- the type or class of customer for these products
-- the methods used to distribute the products
-- the nature of the regulatory environment for these products.

72% of the Group's revenues in 2008 are obtained within Europe
compared with 72% in 2007. Given the limited number of customers,
the Group is following up on its sales efforts on a global basis, rather
than on a regional basis.

In 2006, a new business segment (embedded wireless modules
- included in ‘Other’ in the below table) arose next to the existing
segment ‘External devices’ and this will most likely exceed the
threshold for segment reporting disclosure in the course of 2009.
Origination of sales 31 December
External devices
Other

2008
88%
12%

Revenues
Europe
Americas
Asia-Pacific
Other

2008
72%
13%
10%
5%

Depreciation, amortization and impairment loss are included in the following line items in the income statement:

Thousands EUR

Depreciation
on property, plant
and equipment

Amortization on
intangible assets

Impairment loss
on intangible assets

Total

2007
332

2008
-

2007
-

2008

Cost of products sold
Operating Expenses including:
Research and development expenses
Sales, marketing and royalties expenses
General and administrative expenses

2008
386

2007
-

2008
386

2007
332

5 200
96
818

3 904
64
715

14 749
95
158

12 361
414
134

7 707
-

1 980
-

27 656
191
976

18 245
478
849

Total

6 500

5 015

15 002

12 909

7 707

1 980

29 209

19 904

2007
72%
10%
10%
8%

In 2008, the Group reviewed the existing capitalized R&D projects which resulted in an impairment of EUR 7 707k (2007: EUR 1 980k) mainly
having its source in changing technologies and fast changing market conditions.
The research and development expenses that were expensed as incurred amounted to EUR 12 885k (2007: EUR 10 652 k).

Payroll and related benefits are included in the following line items in the income statement:
Thousands EUR

2008

2007

Cost of products sold
Research and development expenses
Sales, marketing and royalties expenses
General and administrative expenses

5 135
4 411
7 226
7 193

4 486
4 753
5 825
6 313

23 965

21 377

2007
90%
10%

Total

We refer to note 5: Payroll and related benefits of the financial statements in this annual report for further information.

Cost of products sold
At year-end 94.5%, or EUR 182 755k of the cost of product sold relates to materials (2007: 93.7% or EUR 204 393k)
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NOTE 5: PAYROLL AND RELATED BENEFITS

Thousands EUR
Wages and salaries
Social security contributions
Other personnel expenses
Contributions to pension plan
a) Total number of people registered at year-end
b) Average number of people registered in full time equivalent
Direct and indirect labor
Employees
Management

2008

2007

16 473
5 480
1 213
798
23 965
679
656
226
425
5

15 347
4 743
681
606
21 377
615
626
216
402
8

As from 2003, the Company and two of its subsidiaries contribute to local pension funds, which are managed by high rated insurance companies.
It concerns defined contribution schemes and the contribution can be partially fixed and partially related to the operating profit. The contributions to
the pension funds amounted to EUR 798k (2007: EUR 606k).

The net foreign exchange result amounted to EUR -1 697k or -0.6% of total revenues of 2008 (2007: EUR 750k or 0.25% of total revenues of
2007) mainly due to open purchase invoices in USD and open sales invoices in GBP (see also the accounting policy 1 in note 2). During 2008,
the Group recognised revenues net of cash discounts, whilst in 2007 the cash discounts were recognised in the finance result. In 2008 the
cash discounts represented an amount of EUR 1 044k.

NOTE 7: INCOME TAX

Thousands EUR
Tax benefit/(expense) comprises:
Current tax benefit/(expense)
Deferred tax benefit/(expense)
Total tax income/(expense)

Thousands EUR
Interest income
Net foreign exchange gains
Change in fair value of the existing derivative financial instruments
Other
Finance income
Interest expense
Cash discounts
Change in fair value of the existing derivative financial instruments
Net foreign exchange losses
Other, mainly bank charges
Finance costs
Finance net result
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2008

2007

813
1 054
70
1 937
(149)
(481)
(1 697)
(150)
(2 477)
(540)

1 140
750
473
30
2 393
(124)
(1 091)
(947)
(93)
(2 255)
138

2007

111
10 727
10 838

2 133
1 627
3 760

(29 839)

2 672

Tax benefit / (expense) calculated at 33.99%

10 142

(908)

Effect of non-taxable income
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions

(173)
(1 607)
2 476

(173)
(1 645)
6 486

Tax income/(expense) recognized in the income statement

10 838

3 760

Result before tax

NOTE 6: FINANCE RESULT-NET

2008

The tax rate used for the 2008 and 2007 reconciliations above is the corporate tax of 33.99% payable by companies in Belgium under Belgian tax law.
The loss recorded in 2008 gave rise to a significant tax loss in the Company (Option NV) and has lead to a deferred tax benefit for the group in 2008.
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NOTE 8: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Thousands EUR
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Assets
Thousands EUR
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Inventories
Other items
Tax value of loss carry forwards
Gross tax assets/(liabilities)
Netting by taxable entity
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Liabilities

2008

2007

2008

2007

179
4 588
1 131
16 515
22 413

295
610
4 641
5 787
11 333

(1 963)
(50)
(2 013)

(627)
(64)
(691)

-

-

-

22 413

11 333

(2 013)

(691)

The deferred tax asset following losses carried forward resulted from the 2007 and 2008 negative result.
The losses carried forward in 2008 of EUR 30 844k resulted in an additional deferred tax asset of EUR 10 728k at year end 2008. The timing
difference in net book value of intangible assets between taxable basis and IFRS basis resulted in a deferred tax asset of EUR 4 588k.
The other deferred tax assets in 2008 resulted mainly from temporary tax differences with respect to accrued royalty charges.
The Group is of the opinion that those deferred tax assets can be recognised due to the fact that:
-- The main part of the tax asset is related primarily to the same taxation authority;
-- The use of the tax losses carried forward is unlimited in time;
-- The Group has a track record in utilizing tax losses carried forward in the past and;
Moreover, it is more likely than not that sufficient future profits are foreseen to recover those tax losses carried forward.
The capitalization of development expenses under IFRS in one entity of the Group resulted in a deferred tax liability of EUR 1 963k.
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Acquisition cost
Balance at 1 January 2008
Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Additions
Expenditures on product development
Balance at 31 December 2008
Amortization and impairment loss
Balance at 1 January 2008
Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Amortization
Amortization for expenditures on product development
Impairment loss
Balance 31 December 2008
Carrying amount
at 1 January 2008
at 31 December 2008

Acquisition cost
Balance at 1 January 2007
Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Additions
Expenditures on product development
Transfer to other asset categories
Other movements
Balance at 31 December 2007
Amortization and impairment loss
Balance at 1 January 2007
Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Amortization
Amortization for expenditures on product development
Impairment loss
Transfer to other asset categories
Balance 31 December 2007
Carrying amount
at 1 January 2007
at 31 December 2007

Capitalized
development
44 122

21 943
66 065
(27 544)
(25)

Concessions,
patents, licenses
8 480

Software

430

2 053
2
637

8 910

2 692

(4 997)

(1 652)

Total 2008
54 655
2
1 067
21 943
77 667

(1 455)

(266)

(13 281)
(7 707)
(48 557)

(6 452)

(1 918)

(34 193)
(25)
(1 721)
(13 281)
(7 707)
(56 927)

16 578
17 508

3 483
2 458

401
773

20 462
20 740

26 561
(40)
17 699
(98)
44 122

21 229
2 990
(15 739)
8 480

1 622
361
70
2 053

49 412
(40)
3 351
17 699
(28)
(15 739)
54 655

(15 409)
12
(7)
(10 258)
(1 980)
98
(27 544)

( 2 725)
(2 272)
(4 997)

(1 280)
(372)
(1 652)

(19 414)
12
(2 651)
(10 258)
(1 980)
98
(34 193)

11 152
16 578

18 504
3 483

342
401

29 998
20 462
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NOTE 9: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

In 2006, the Group secured a license to certain intellectual property rights for an amount of EUR 15 739k. At the end of 2007, the Group closed
an amendment to the existing contract, the reflection of which has resulted in a decrease of intangible assets for a net amount of EUR 14 348k
and a decrease in current and non-current liabilities for in total EUR 15 739k.

IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE USEFUL LIFE
In 2008, the Group reviewed the existing capitalized R&D projects which resulted in an impairment of EUR 7 707k (2007: EUR 1 980k)
mainly having its source in changing technologies and fast changing market conditions. This analysis was based on projects with a faster
than anticipated end-of-life, projects with reduced contributions and projects with no visibility on sales beyond end of 2009. The value was
determined based on an estimate of the projected contributions from these development projects in the coming quarters.
Of this impairment in 2008, EUR 5 011k related to the early termination of development projects and EUR 2 696k resulted from the difference
between the carrying amount and the value for specific development projects.
This was recognized in the income statement in the line item “Research and development expenses”.

Thousands EUR
Acquisition cost
Balance at 1 January 2008
Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Additions
Disposals
Transfer to other asset categories
Balance 31 December 2008
Depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2008
Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Depreciation
Disposals and cancellation
Balance at 31 December 2008
Carrying amount
at 1 January 2008
at 31 December 2008

Acquisition cost
Balance at 1 January 2007
Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Additions
Disposals
Transfer to other asset categories
Balance at 31 December 2007
Depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2007
Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Depreciation
Disposals
Transfer to other asset categories
Balance 31 December 2007
Carrying amount
at 1 January 2007
at 31 December 2007
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Machinery and
computer equipment

Furniture and
Vehicles

Leasehold
improvements

Under
construction

Total 2008

32 997
5
2 325
(352)
202
35 177

1 830
46
413
(132)
14
2 171

1 646
1
94
30
1 771

246
(246)
-

36 719
52
2 832
(484)
39 119

(15 097)
(2)
(5 823)
192
(20 730)

(877)
(12)
(353)
74
(1 168)

(606)
(1)
(323)
(930)

-

(16 580)
(15)
(6 499)
266
(22 828)

17 900
14 447

953
1 003

1 040
841

246
-

20 139
16 291

19 894
(3)
11 688
(1 218)
2 636
32 997

1 565
(5)
336
(27)
(39)
1 830

815
831
1 646

2 702
246
(2 702)
246

24 976
(8)
13 101
(1 245)
(105)
36 719

(11 964)
1
(4 369)
1 235
(15 097)

(538)
1
(402)
27
35
(877)

(375)
(244)
13
(606)

-

(12 877)
2
(5 015)
1 275
35
(16 580)

7 930
17 900

1 027
953

440
1 040

2 702
246

12 099
20 139
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NOTE 10: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTE 11: INVENTORIES

CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Thousands EUR

Thousands EUR

2008

2007

Trade receivables
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Subtotal

43 469
(612)
42 857

58 315
(4 935)
53 380

Recoverable VAT
Other receivables

1 458
504
1 962
44 819

903
708
1 611
54 991

Subtotal

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods
Provision for inventories

%

7 417
24 330
11 212
(10 065)
32 894

22.5%
74.0%
34.1%
-30.6%

15 732
23 814
8 047
(8 342)
39 251

40.0%
60.7%
20.5%
-21.2%

The increase in provision for inventories of EUR 1 725k is recognized in the cost of product sold, mainly to cover excess positions and to lower
the stock value to net realisable value for certain products. In addition an amount of EUR 2.4 million has been expensed as a result of inventory
write offs during 2008.

Gross Amounts
2008
41 654
1 044
771
43 469

2007

Inventories decreased from EUR 39 251k to EUR 32 894k at the end of 2008. This decrease is mainly explained by additional write down of
inventories and a decrease in raw materials.
At the end of 2008, the total provision for inventories amounted to EUR 10 065k (2007: EUR 8 342k).

Aging of trade receivables:

< 60 days (neither past due no impairment)
60 - 90 days
90 - 120 days
> 120 days

%

Raw materials consist of chipsets and components. Work in progress concern assembled printed circuit boards and finished goods are the
products ready to be shipped to customers.

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer to Note 22.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60-90 days’ terms.
The other receivables consist mainly of prepaid expenses and accrued income.

Thousands EUR

2008

Allowance for doubtful accounts

2007
52 403
640
490
4 781
58 315

2008

There are no inventories pledged for security.

2007

(612)
(612)

(406)
(4 529)
(4 935)

See also Note 20 for further information about credit risk.
Even if one particular brand or a global mobile operator would represent a substantial percentage of the Group’s trade receivables, the Group
is dealing with the individual affiliated operator who is free to negotiate and manage its own contracts and placement of purchase orders. All
these affiliated operators have different credit risk profiles and benefit from different terms and conditions.

NOTE 12: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Thousands EUR

2008

2007

Bank accounts
Cash

33 311
17
33 328

36 276
23
36 299

Bank accounts do not include short term deposit (between one day and 3 months) in 2008 (2007: EUR 24 270k).

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Thousands EUR

2008

2007

Cash guarantees

383
383

82
82

Other non current assets are cash guarantees that are mainly related to rent guarantees in the major facilities.
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NOTE 13: FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Thousands EUR
Financial Derivatives– positive fair values

TERM AND DEBT REPAYMENT SCHEDULE
2008

2007

0
0

473
473

In 2007 and 2008, the Group entered into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure on the US dollar cash flows All derivatives
are recorded at fair value and classified as trading, which means that all volatility through changes in the fair value is recorded through the
income statement as financial result. All contracts related to those financial instruments expired before year-end 2008.
The profit resulting from the derivative financial instruments amounted to EUR 573k (2007: EUR -473k) and is recognized in the income
statement as a financial income.

IWT loan-base amount
IWT loan-interests
Credit amount
Credit interests
Total

2009

2010+

74
23
13
1
111

0
0
3
3

2008

2007

75
14
89

75
946

Current
Current financial liabilities are composed as follow:

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Thousands EUR

Non current
Non-current portion of long-term debt consisted of the following:
Thousands EUR
Subordinated loan
Credit agreement

2008

2007

16

74
-

In 2003, the Company obtained from the Flemish Innovation Institute I.W.T. a subordinated loan of EUR 222k to support Option’s innovative efforts
in the Wireless LAN area and seamless transition to the GPRS PC data cards. This loan is reimbursable in 12 quarterly installments of EUR 18.5k as
from March 2007 and the interest rate is 7.95%. The 2007 non-current portion became current in 2008.
During 2008, a subsidiary entered into a credit agreement of EUR 25k to support a hardware investment. This credit agreement is reimbursable in
24 monthly installments of EUR 1.1k. The interest rate is 6.53%.

Current portion of IWT loan
Financial Derivatives– negative fair values
Current portion of interest free loan
Other financial liabilities

1 021

Any remaining debts under finance lease arrangements have been settled prior to 31 December 2006. During 2008, the Company entered into an
interest free loan with a hard- and software provider, which will expire in 2009.
The pledge on the Company's business in favor of a financial institute for past loan facilities consist of the following:
Thousands EUR

2008

2007

Pledge on the company’s business

1 977

1 977

Currently, the Company is in process to terminate above mentioned pledge.
During 2008 the Company entered into a credit facility of EUR 10 million with a financial institution of which no amounts have been withdrawn.
As such this has no effect on the financial statements per 31 December 2008. At year end, the credit facility was not available under current
covenants. Therefore, the Company is currently in negotiation to enhance the credit facility with revised covenant packages to secure it’s future
capital requirements.
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NOTE 14: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

NOTE 16: OPERATING AND FINANCE LEASES

Thousands EUR

2008

OPERATING LEASES

2007

LEASES AS LESSEE
Trade payables
Salaries, tax and payroll related liabilities
Other payables, accrued expenses and deferred income

55 720
3 993
7 640
67 353

52 717
1 864
3 978
58 559

Non-cancelable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
-- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms.
-- Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months.
-- Interest payable is normally settled quarterly throughout the financial year.
-- For terms and conditions relating to related parties, refer to Note 22.

Thousands EUR

2008

2007

Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

2 096
4 847

1 957
5 478
7 435

6 943

The Group leases a number of office locations, car rentals and office equipment under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of five to ten years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. Lease payments are increased annually to reflect indexations. None of the
leases include contingent rentals.

NOTE 15: PROVISIONS

In 2008, EUR 2 761k was recognized as an expense in the income statement in respect of operating leases (2007: EUR 2 293k).

Thousands EUR

2007

Warranty provision
Loss on supply agreements
Legal and other claims

1 259
1 156
3 561
5 976

Additions
132
383
515

(Use)
(25)
(914)
(1900)
(2 839)

(Reversal)
(519)
(696)
(1 215)

2008
847
242
1 348
2 437

A large part of the provisions, set up in 2007, have been used since a large part of the discussions with patent holders on intellectual properties
rights and legal liabilities have been settled. The outcome of the remaining legal and other claims may differ from the assessment made.
The main part of the loss on supply agreements has been used during 2008. The warranty provision has been reversed with an amount of
EUR 519k, mainly due to a decrease of the 2007 back-log position for units returned under warranty.

LEASES AS LESSOR
Non-cancelable operating sublease rentals are receivable as follows:
Thousands EUR
Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

2008

2007

6

77
77

6

The Group’s Irish entity is subleasing premises to a third party. None of the leases include contingent rentals. In 2008, EUR 77k (2007: EUR 77k)
was recognized as rental income in the income statement. This sublease will come to an end at the beginning of 2009. The future operating lease
receivable will be EUR 6k, not later than one year.
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NOTE 17: SHAREHOLDERS’EQUITY

CAPITAL STRUCTURE – ISSUED CAPITAL

Warrants “V”

At year-end 2008, the Company announced the following significant shareholders:

Identity of the person, entity or group of persons or entities (*)

Pepper NV (100% Jan Callewaert)
Free float of which:
UBS (Switzerland)
SISU Capital Ltd (United Kingdom)
SR Global Fund LP (Cayman Islands)
Goldman Sachs (USA)
Neuberger Berman LLC (USA)
Total outstanding shares

Number of shares

Percentage of financial
instruments held

7 154 504

17.34 %

34 094 792
1 283 492
1 331 495
1 457 500
1 518 572
2 655 289
41 249 296

82.66%
3.11%
3.23%
3.53%
3.68%
6.43%
100%
Shares
41 249 296
41 249 296

31 December 2008
31 December 2007
The authorized share capital comprises 41 249 296 ordinary shares, for an amount of EUR 6 116k.
The shares have no par value and have been issued and fully paid. All shares held in the Company carry the same rights.

At 31 December 2008 and 2007

A total of 2,241,540 warrants “V” were offered in the course of financial year 2008:
-- 340,000 warrants were granted to the directors (100% accepted in 2008);
-- 325,000 warrants were granted to the members of the Executive Management Team (100% accepted in 2008);
-- 1,576,540 warrants were offered on the 23th of December 2008 to employees and self-employed advisors of Option NV and subsidiaries
(none have been accepted in 2008).
The main terms and conditions of the warrants plan “V” governing the above warrants are as follows:
-- the warrants are subject to a vesting scheme (20% vested 6 months after the offer; 20% 1 year after the offer, 20% 2 years after the offer,
20% 3 years after the offer and 20% 4 years after the offer);
-- the exercise price of the above warrants amounts to EUR 2.84 per warrant for all the members of the Executive Management Team, Directors
and self-employed advisors;
-- the exercise price of the above warrants amounts to EUR 1.86 for employees;
-- the exercise must take place during exercise windows (i.e. May, September or December);
-- upon conversion of their warrants the warrant holders receive one ordinary share of the Company per warrant;
-- the plan provides for an accelerated vesting and exercise in the event of a change of control.
-- the lifetime of the warrant is 5 years.
The weighted average fair value of the warrants “V” granted during the financial year 2008 is EUR 0.86. The warrants were priced using the
Black & Scholes model. Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has been adjusted on management’s best estimate. Expected
volatility is based on the historical share price volatility over the past 4 years. The risk free interest rate is based on the OLO Bonds as valued by
the National Bank of Belgium.

SHARE PREMIUM
Thousands EUR

On 26 August 2008 the Shareholders’ meeting approved the issuance of 2 500 000 warrants “V”. Upon acknowledgement that none of the 2
200 000 naked warrants “U” were granted to or subscribed by personnel of the company, the meeting resolved to withdraw and to destroy the
2 200 000 naked warrants “U”. The new plan “V” is offered to Directors, members of the Executive Management Team, employees and persons
designated by name (as listed in the warrant plan “V”).

2008

2007

43 865

43 865

SHARE BASED PAYMENT RESERVE
Thousands EUR

2008

2007

At 31 December 2008 and 2007

513

360

The following inputs into the model were performed for the accepted warrants “V”:
Inputs into the model
Grant date share price
Exercise price
Expected volatility
Expected lifetime of the warrant “V”
Risk-free interest rate
Number of warrants “V” outstanding
Number of shares outstanding

2008
2.09
2.84
60.94%
4 years
3.59%
665 000
41 249 296

The share based payment reserve is used to record the value of the equity-settled share option plan provided to employees as part of their remuneration.
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NOTE 19: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The following reconciles the outstanding warrants ”V” granted under the plan at the beginning and end of the financial year :
Number of Warrants “V”

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions and the funding requirements.

2008

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Accepted during the financial year
Exercised during the financial year
Expired during the financial year
Balance at end of the financial year

0
665 000
665 000

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:
-- to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other shareholders, and
-- to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk.
The Group’s overall strategy and objectives remain unchanged during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007.
The capital structure of the Group consists of the current portion of long term debt and cash and cash equivalents, issued capital, share
premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The fair value of the granted warrants “V” were calculated at EUR 153k for the financial year 2008.
The Group has no material debt. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio and the group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio around
30% The gearing ratio at year-end was as follows:

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVES
The foreign currency translation reserves comprise all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations (see also the accounting policy 1).

NOTE 18: EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic net earnings per share are computed based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net
earnings per share are computed based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding including the dilutive effect of warrants.

Thousands EUR
Current portion of long term debt
Cash and cash equivalents
Net
Equity
Gearing ratio

2008
(75)
33 328
33 253
99 082
33.6%

2007
(75)
36 299
36 224
118 094
30.6%

NOTE 20: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The following is reconciliation from basic earnings per share to diluted earnings per share for each of the last two years:
Earnings per common share
Net result (in Thousands EUR)
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding:
Basic
Diluted
Per Share (in EUR)
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

2008

2007

(19 001)

6 432

41 249 296
41 249 296

41 249 296
41 249 296

-0.46
-0.46

0.16
0.16

The Group Corporate Treasury function monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group, which include credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk on an ongoing basis.
Derivative financial instruments are used to reduce the exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. These instruments are subject to the
risk of market rates changing subsequent to acquisition. These changes are generally offset by opposite effects on the item being hedged.

Referring to IAS 33, warrants only have a dilutive effect when their conversion to ordinary shares would decrease the earnings per share. Taken
into account the negative result of the Group, the basic and dilutive earnings per share remains equal.
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Categories of significant financial instruments:

The average credit period on sales of goods is 60 days. No interest is systematically charged on overdue payments. The group has performed a
detailed analysis of its accounts receivable, which were more than 90 days overdue during 2008.
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

Thousands EUR
Financial assets measured at cost or amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Recoverable VAT
Income tax receivable
Derivative financial instruments
Financial liabilities measured at cost or amortised cost
Trade payables
Salaries, tax and payroll related liabilities
IWT loan and interest free loan
Income tax payable
Derivative financial instruments

Notes

2008

2007

12
10
7

33 328
42 857
1 458
227

36 299
53 380
903
2 958

13

-

473

14
13
7

55 720
3 933
89
104

52 717
1 864
148
1 573

13

-

946

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The Group
has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses external scoring systems to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer, this in respect of the internal “Credit Management Policy”. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed on
a regular basis.
Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The credit risk is monitored on a continuous basis.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of EUR 1 204k (2007: EUR 2 626k) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables is more than 120 days.
Aging of past due, but not impaired:
Thousands EUR

2008

2007

60 - 90 days
90 - 120 days
> 120 days

1 044
160
1 204

640
84
1 902
2 626

2008

2007

4 935
208
(3 485)
(1 046)
612

211
4 724

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
Thousands EUR
Balance at the beginning of the year
New reserves
(Write-offs)
(releases)

4 935

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the
date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the considerable spread in the
customer base.

Option grants credit to customers in the normal course of business. Generally, the Group does not require collateral or any other security to
support amounts due. Management performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers. All receivables are fully collectible except those
doubtful accounts for which an allowance is accounted for.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across geographical areas. The receivables for customers who belong to the
same group, in different geographical areas, are treated separately. Only one customer represents 11.6% of the total trade receivables of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2008. In 2007, one customer represented 6.3 % of the total receivables of the Group.
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Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

MARKET RISK: FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Thousands EUR
Gross Amounts
60 - 90 days
90 - 120 days
> 120 days

2008

2007

612
612

406
2 878
3 284

The Group is subject to material currency risk, as the larger part of its purchase transactions are in US dollars. The Group aims to match foreign
currency cash inflows with foreign cash outflows.
On the basis of the average volatility of the USD and the GBP, the Company estimated the reasonably possible change of exchange rate of this
currency against the euro as follows:

LIQUIDITY RISK
The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. In 2003, the Company obtained from the Flemish Innovation Institute I.W.T. a subordinated loan of EUR 222k as
mentioned in note 13 Leases.
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities:
Thousands EUR

2008

2008
Derivative financial instruments
Trade payables
Salaries, tax and payroll related liabilities
Income tax payable
IWT and other loan

2007
Derivative financial instruments
Trade payables
Salaries, tax and payroll related liabilities
Income tax payable
IWT loan

946
52 717
1 864
1 573
103
57 203

2009

2010

55 720
3 933
104
111
59 868

-

97
97

2011

3
3

-

2008
EUR/USD

Closing rate, December 31,2008
1.3917

Possible volatility in %
11.60%

Possible closing rate, December 31,2008
1.2303 – 1.5531

2007
EUR/USD

Closing rate, December 31,2007
1.4721

Possible volatility in %
6.13%

Possible closing rate, December 31,2007
1.3818 -1.5623

The Group’s exposure in USD as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 is as follows:
Carrying amounts - Thousands USD

31 December 2008

Trade payables
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

(47 929)
24 143
18 055
(5 731)

31 December 2007
(44 380)
29 037
14 896
(447)

If the USD had weakened/strengthened during 2008 by the above estimated possible changes against the euro, the 2008 net result would have
been EUR 478k higher/lower.
If the USD had weakened/strengthened during 2007 by the above estimated possible changes against the euro, the 2007 net result would have
been EUR 27k higher/lower.
2008
EUR/GBP

Closing rate, December 31,2008
0.9525

Possible volatility in %
10.87%

Possible closing rate, December 31,2008
0.849 – 1.056

The Group’s exposure in GBP as of 31 December 2008 is as follows:
Carrying amounts - Thousands GBP
Trade payables
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2008
(26)
2 458
4 671
7 103

MARKET RISK: INTEREST RATE RISK
The Group is not subject to material interest risk. As in 2007, the Group has no floating rate financial assets or liabilities and no interest
rate derivatives.
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If the GBP had weakened/strengthened during 2008 by the above estimated possible changes against the euro, the 2008 net result would have
been EUR 811k higher/lower. The carrying amounts in GBP in 2007 have not been disclosed, since they are immaterial. These analyses are
representative for the Group’s exposure throughout the year.
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NOTE 21: CONTINGENT LIABILITITES

Under license agreements, the Group is committed to royalty payments using certain essential patents - intellectual property rights (IPR) - to
be used in 2.5G and 3G wireless products. The Group has progressively entered into license agreements with the basic patent holders, which
brought down the uncertainty associated with such unasserted claims significantly. As in the prior fiscal year, the Group has continued to
recognize its current best estimate of the obligations, including ongoing discussions with a patent holder. The Group believes it has adequately
accrued for those essential patents at December 31, 2008. In the opinion of management, the amount of any ultimate liability with respect to
these actions will not materially affect the Group’s consolidated financial position.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMPENSATION
In 2008, the compensation for the Board of Directors amounted to EUR 321k (2007: EUR 270 k).
Board meetings attended
Name

NOTE 22: RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
The financial statements include the financial statements of Option NV and the subsidiaries listed in the following table:

Option Wireless Ltd, Cork (Ireland)
Option Germany GmbH, Adelsried (Germany)
Option Wireless Germany GmbH, Kamp-Lintfort (Germany)
Option Wireless, Sweden AB, Stockholm (Sweden)
Option Japan KK (Japan)
Option Wireless Hong Kong Limited (China)
Option Wireless Hong Kong Ltd. (Suzhou) Representation Office (China)
Option Wireless Hong Kong Limited Taiwan Branch (Taiwan)
Option Inc. (United States of America)
Multi Mode Multi Media Solutions (M4S) (Belgium)

2008

2007

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
-

Since 1997 the Company has a professional relationship with the US based law firm Brown Rudnick LLP. Mr. Lawrence Levy who joined the
Board of Directors of the Company early 2006 is one of the Senior Counsels of this law firm. Going forward, the Company will continue to work
for certain matters with this law firm. It is being understood that Mr. Lawrence Levy will not directly work on Company related matters in his
capacity of Senior Counsel of Brown Rudnick LLP.
In 2008, the fees paid to Brown Rudnick LLP amounted to EUR 38k (2007: EUR 77k).
In the course of normal operations, related party transactions entered into by the Group have been contracted on an arms-length basis.
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Jan Callewaert (1)
Arnoud De Meyer
Philip Vermeulen (2)
Lawrence Levy
Jan Loeber
David Hytha
Q-List BVBA (3)
An Other Look To Efficiency SPRL
Visinnova BVBA

Physical
attendance

calls

4/4
4/4
2/2
4/4
4/4
4/4
2/2
2/2
2/2

8/8
6/8
5/5
8/8
7/8
5/8
3/3
3/3
2/3

Audit
Committees
attended
N.A.
5/5
3/3
3/3
N.A.
N.A.
2/2
2/2
N.A

Remuneration
Committees
attended
N.A.
2/2
1/2
1/2
N.A.
N.A.
1/2
N.A.
N.A.

Strategic
Committees
attended
6/6
2/4
N.A.
4/4
6/6
6/6
N.A.
N.A.
2/2

Total remuneration
Thousands EUR
48.50 (2007: 45)
49.00 (2007: 45)
20.50 (2007: 45)
49.00 (2007: 43.75)
47.50 (2007: 41.5)
45.50 (2007: 41.5)
26.50 (2007: N.A.)
16.83 (2007: N.A.)
18.08 (2007: N.A.)

(1) Excluding CEO remuneration to Mondo NV
(2) Until 26 August 2008
(3) From 26 August onwards

In addition, one non-executive Board member received an amount of EUR 4k in his capacity of member of the Board in Ireland.
The following number of Warrants “V” were granted to the Board of Directors in the course of 2008:
Jan Callewaert
Jan Loeber
Arnoud De Meyer
David Hytha
Lawrence Levy
Q-List BVBA
An Other Look To Efficiency SPRL
Visinnova BVBA
Total

50,000
50,000
50,000
50,000
50,000
30,000
30,000
30,000
340,000

All the above mentioned warrants were timely accepted.
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NOTE 24: OPTION COMPANIES AND BUSINESS COMBINATION

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

LIST OF COMPANIES, INTEGRALLY CONSOLIDATED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The CEO of the Group is the owner of a management company that is performing management services for the Group. The remuneration for
these management services in 2008 amounted to EUR 540k fixed (2007: EUR 540k). The variable compensation related to 2008 was waived.
The outstanding receivable towards Pepper NV (100% Jan Callewaert) amounted to EUR 51k in 2008 and remained unchanged compared to
2007. Mr. Jan Callewaert holds directly and indirectly (through Pepper NV) 17.34% of the shares of the Company.
For the year 2008, an aggregate gross amount of EUR 1 404k (2007: EUR 958k) was attributed to the other five members of the Executive
Management Team (2007: six members of the Executive Management Team). In 2008, an amount of EUR 108k was accrued as variable pay
relating to 2008 performance (2007: EUR 0k). For the five members of the Executive Management Team, benefits include an extra-legal
pension scheme, the cost of which amounted to EUR 68k (2007: EUR 73k).
The 2007 compensations have been restated in order to be consistent and comparable with the amounts disclosed in 2008, including only the
compensations of the Executive Management Team.

NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY
BELGIUM
OPTION NV
Multi Mode Multi Media Solutions (M4S)
IRELAND
OPTION WIRELESS Ltd, Cork
GERMANY
OPTION GERMANY GmbH
GERMANY
OPTION WIRELESS GERMANY GmbH

The following number of warrants “V” were granted to the members of the Executive Management Team in the course of 2008:
Jan Callewaert
Filip Buerms
Patrick Hofkens
Bernard Schaballie
David Whelan
John Patrick Ziegler
Total

75,000
50,000
50,000
50,000
50,000
50,000
325,000

All the above mentioned warrants were timely accepted.

NOTE 23: EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
Subsequent to December 31, 2008, the following events or transactions occur which required disclosure:
-- The Group is taking the necessary steps to re-align the Group’s cost base with the new economic reality, including a restructuring, combined
with other cost saving projects and measures. This will be effected via a combination of headcount reduction and general improvements in
the Group’s non-HR cost base.
-- The Group strengthened its Executive Management Team and its organization structure with the appointment of Philippe Rogge as the
Group’s first Chief Operating Officer (COO).
-- After balance sheet date 1 169 750 warrants “V” have been accepted by employees and other persons designated by name.
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USA
OPTION INC.
JAPAN
OPTION WIRELESS JAPAN KK
CHINA
OPTION WIRELESS HONG KONG LIMITED
CHINA
OPTION WIRELESS HONG KONG LIMITED
REPRESENTATION OFFICE
TAIWAN
OPTION WIRELESS HONG KONG LIMITED,
TAIWAN BRANCH

REGISTERED OFFICE

% OF SHAREHOLDING

Gaston Geenslaan 14 3001 Leuven, Belgium
Gaston Geenslaan, 14 3001 Leuven, Belgium

Consolidating company
100%

Kilbarry Industrial Park
Dublin Hill, Cork

100 %

Beim Glaspalast 1
D-86153 Augsburg, Germany

100 %

SüdstraBe 9
47475 Kamp - Lintfort, Germany

100 %

13010 Morris Road Building 1, suite 600
Alpharetta, GA 30004, USA

100 %

5-1, Shinbashi 5-chome Minato-ku
Tokyo 105-0004, Japan

100 %

35/F Central Plaza 18 Harbour Road
Wanchai Hong Kong, China

100 %

909-1 Genway Building 188 Wangdun Road
Suzhou Industrial Park (SIP)
Suzhou 215123, Jiangsu Province, China

100 %

4F Theta Building 10, Lane 360, Ne-Hu Road, Sec
1, Taipei City, Taiwan

100 %

DE-CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY
SWEDEN
OPTION WIRELESS SWEDEN AB

REGISTERED OFFICE
Sturegatan 2 172 31 Sundbyberg
Stockholm, Sweden
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Auditor's Report

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Statutory auditor’s report to the shareholders meeting on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 december 2008

At the 25th of june 2008 the Group acquired Multi Mode Multi Media solutions (abbreviated “M4S”), an entity which is specialised in the
development of 4G radio frequencies. The proportion of shares acquired was 100% and the cost of the acquisition was EUR 1.

To the shareholders
Analysis of current assets and liabilities acquired:
Thousands EUR

As required by law and the company’s articles of association, we are
pleased to report to you on the audit assignment which you have
entrusted to us. This report includes our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements together with the required additional comment.

2008

Current assets
Cash & cash equivalents
Trade & other receivables
inventories
Current Liabilities
Trade & other payables
Total
Goodwill on acquisition
Total

22
11
-

Unqualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
with an explanatory paragraph

(31)
2
2

At the date of finalisation of these financial statements, the necessary market valuations and other calculations had not been finalised and is
currently in process. Management considers the impact on goodwill and deferred taxes as minor.
The cost of this acquisition was paid through Cash. The impact on the net result of the Group was minor since the costs arising from this
subsidiary have been capitalized as development projects. After acquisition date, the Group increased the share capital of the entity from
EUR 80k to EUR 500k. As a result of this capital increase the Company has accepted 2 500 000 warrants.

NOTE 25: INFORMATION ON THE AUDITOR’S ASSIGNMENTS AND RELATED FEES
The following auditor’s fees were recognized as an expense in the reporting period:
Thousands EUR

2008

2007

2006

Worldwide audit services for the annual financial statements
Worldwide tax and legal services
Other worldwide services

474
139
156
769

400
244
86
730

169
124
2
295
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We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of OPTION NV (“the company”) and its subsidiaries (jointly “the
group”), prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and with the legal and
regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium. Those consolidated
financial statements comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 December 2008, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The
consolidated balance sheet shows total assets of 171.094 (000) EUR
and the consolidated income statement shows a consolidated loss for
the year then ended of 19.001(000) EUR.
The board of directors of the company is responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. This responsibility includes
among other things: designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with legal requirements and auditing standards applicable
in Belgium, as issued by the “Institut des Réviseurs d’Entreprises/
Instituut van de Bedrijfsrevisoren”. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
In accordance with these standards, we have performed procedures
to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we have
considered internal control relevant to the group’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
group’s internal control. We have assessed the basis of the accounting
policies used, the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
company and the presentation of the consolidated financial statements,
taken as a whole.
Finally, the board of directors and responsible officers of the company
have replied to all our requests for explanations and information. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the group’s financial position as of 31 December 2008, and
of its results and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU
and with the legal and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium.
Despite the fact that the group has incurred significant losses over the
year that impact its financial position, the financial statements have
been drafted using the going concern principle. This assumption is only
justified to the extent that the projected plans and measures, including
obtaining additional means of financing, are realised. Without modifying
the above unqualified opinion, we draw your attention to the section
‘Valuation rules’ of the directors’ report, in which the board of directors,
in accordance with Belgian legal requirements, justifies the application
of the going concern principle. No adjustments have been recorded with
respect to the valuation or the classification of certain balance sheet
items, which would be required, should the group no longer be able to
continue its operations.
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Abbreviated Statutory Accounts of Option nv and Explanatory Notes

Additional comment

The following documents are extracts of the statutory annual accounts of Option NV prepared under Belgian GAAP in accordance with article
105 of the Company Code.
Only the consolidated annual financial statements as set forth in the preceding pages present a true and fair view of the financial position and
performance of the Option Group.
The statutory auditor’s report is unqualified and certifies that the non consolidated financial statements of Option NV for the year ended
31 December 2008 give a true and fair view of the financial position and results of Option NV in accordance with all legal and regulatory
dispositions.

The preparation and the assessment of the information that should be
included in the directors’ report on the consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the board of directors.
Our responsibility is to include in our report the following additional
comment which does not change the scope of our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements:

Abbreviated statutory balance sheet (according to Belgian Accounting Standards)
- The directors’ report on the consolidated financial statements
includes the information required by law and is in agreement
with the consolidated financial statements. However, we are unable
to express an opinion on the description of the principal risks and
uncertainties confronting the group, or on the status, future evolution,
or significant influence of certain factors on its future development.
We can, nevertheless, confirm that the information given is not in
obvious contradiction with any information obtained in the context of
our appointment.

Diegem, 16 April 2009
The statutory auditor

ASSETS
Thousands EUR
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Financial assets
Current Assets
Stocks and contracts in progress
Accounts receivable within one year
Cash & cash investments
Deferred charges and accrued income
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Thousands EUR

DELOITTE Bedrijfsrevisoren / Reviseurs d’Entreprises
BV o.v.v.e. CVBA / SC s.f.d. SCRL
Represented by Geert Verstraeten
in absence of Leo Van Steenberge
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Capital and reserves
Capital
Share premium
Legal reserve
Profit/(loss) carried forward
Creditors
Subordinated loan
Amounts payable after more than one year
Amounts payable after more within one year
Accrued charges and deferred income
Total liabilities

2008

2007

2006

28 233
12 675
12 376
3 182
49 489
3 037
40 749
5 428
275
77 722

37 214
18 763
15 821
2 630
38 381
2 669
19 750
15 593
369
75 595

24 132
9 869
11 632
2 631
75 898
2 419
44 059
28 849
571
100 030

2008

2007

2006

24 861
6 116
44 848
612
(26 714)
52 861
51 879
982
77 722

63 986
6 116
44 848
612
12 410
11 609
74
10 721
814
75 595

76 752
6 116
44 847
612
25 177
23 278
148
22 454
676
100 030
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Abbreviated Statutory Accounts of Option nv and Explanatory Notes

Abbreviated statutory income statement (according to Belgian Accounting Standards)
ABBREVIATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Thousands EUR
I. Revenues
Turnover
Increase (decrease) in stocks in finished goods, work and contracts in progress
Capitalized development costs
Other operating income (mainly intercompanies transactions)

2008

49 039
11 905
(151)
15 440
21 845

2007

2006

56 265
18 009
15 007
23 249

54 287
6 504
(8)
6 843
40 948

II. Operating charges
Raw materials, consumables and goods for resale
Services and other goods
Remuneration, social security costs and pensions
Depreciation of and other amounts written off formation expenses,
intangible and tangible fixed assets
Increase, decrease in amounts written off stocks, contracts
Contracts in progress and trade debtors
Provision for contingencies
Other operating charges

(75 827)
10 028
32 744
17 309

(69 275)
14 562
28 832
14 816

(36 416)
4 727
15 531
10 445

15 357

11 014

5 530

173

-

145

215

51

38

III. Operating profit/(loss)
IV. Financial income
V. Financial charges
VI. Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxes
VII. Exeptional charges
IX. Profit/(loss) for the period before taxes
X. Income tax expense
XIII. Profit/(loss) for the period available for appropriation

(26 788)
2 616
(2 700)
(26 872)
(12 241)
(39 113)
(11)
(39 124)

(13 010)
1 779
(1 538)
(12 767)

17 871
11 076
(774)
28 173

(12 767)
(12 767)

28 173
(5 341)
22 832

ABBREVIATED APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT (according to belgian accounting standards)
Thousands EUR
Profit/(loss) to be appropriated
Profit/(loss) for the period available for appropriation
Profit/(loss) carried forward from previous year
Legal reserve
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2008

12 410
(39 124)
(26 714)

2007

25 177
(12 767)
12 410
-

2006

25 177
22 832
2 345
-

Summary of most significant valuation rules Abbreviated statutory accounts - Belgian GAAP

Vehicles
Vehicles are linearly depreciated at rate of 20%.

Formation expenses
Formation expenses are charged against income except for
costs capitalized.

Office Furniture
Office furniture and equipment are linearly depreciated at
rates of 10% to 33.3%. Leased office equipment is linearly
depreciated at rates between 20% and 50%.

Intangible assets
Patents, licenses and software are linearly depreciated at
rates of 20% to 50%.

Financial assets
During the financial period investments are not revalued.

Machinery and equipment
Lab equipment, test equipment and computer equipment are
linearly depreciated at rates of 20% to 50%. Test equipment
(under lease) is linearly depreciated at a rate between 10%
and 50%.

Stocks
Stocks (raw materials, consumables, work in progress,
finished goods and goods for resale) are valued at acquisition
cost determined according to the FIFO-method or by the lower
market value.

Research and development
As from January 1st 2005:
Research expenditure is recognized as an expense as incurred.
Costs incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognized as
intangible assets only if all of the following conditions are met:
An asset is developed that can be identified;
- It is probable that the asset developed will generate future
economic benefits; and
- The development costs of the asset can be measured
reliably. Other development expenditures are recognized
as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset
in a subsequent period. Development costs that have a
finite useful life that have been capitalized are amortized
from the commencement of the commercial production of
the product on a straight-line basis over the period of its
expected benefit, not exceeding three years.

Products
The products are valued at costs that only directly attribute.
Contracts in progress
Contracts in progress are valued at production cost.
Debts
Liabilities do not include long-term debts, bearing no interests
at an unusual low interest.
Foreign currencies
Debts, liabilities and commitments denominated in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rate of 31
December 2008. Transactions are converted at the daily
exchange rate.
Exchange differences have been disclosed in the annual
accounts as follows:
- Positive exchange results in caption IV. Financial income of
the profit and loss account;
- Negative exchange results in caption V. Financial charges of
the profit and loss account.
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Information about Option share

Explanatory notes - Abbreviated statutory accounts - Belgian GAAP

The Option Share on Euronext

Participating interests
The following participations in subsidiaries are retained with mention of the number of registered rights and percentage
of ownership:

Option’s ordinary shares were originally listed in USD on NASDAQ Europe
(ex EASDAQ) following the Initial Public Offering of November 26, 1997.
Option’s shares started to be listed in EUR on the First Market of Euronext
Brussels as from August 5th, 2003. Option NV’s shares are quoted on the
continuous trading market under the trading symbol “OPTI”.

31 December 2008
Option Germany – Augsburg (D)
Option Wireless– Cork (IRL)
Option Wireless Hong Kong Limited – China
Multi Mode Multi Media Solutions (M4S)

Shares held by company
(by number)
1
2 000 000
10 000
1 450 000

% held by company

% held by subsidiaries

100%
100%
100%
100%

0%
0%
0%
0%

Statement of Capital
Issued capital 31 December 2008

Amounts (in EUR)

Number of shares

At the end of the preceding period

6 116 067

41 249 296

At the end of the period

6 116 067

41 249 296

Structure of the capital 31 December 2008
Different categories of shares
Registered shares and bearer shares
Registered
Bearer
Authorized capital
On 31 December 2008 the authorized (but non-issued) capital amounted to EUR 6 116k

41 249 296
41 249 296

In September 2003, the OPTION stock became part of the NextEconomy
quality index. Before Option was already part of the CSR Ethibel quality label.
With a view to increasing the liquidity of the Option shares and their
visibility to the US investors, Option has decided to implement a Level
I American Depositary Receipts ("ADR") Program. An F-6 registration
statement has been filed with The Securities and Exchange Commission.
This Level I ADR Program has the following characteristics:
-- ADRs are U.S. securities issued by a depositary bank representing
shares of a non-US company. In this case, The Bank of New York
has been selected as depositary bank;
-- An ADR gives, investors a voting right and future dividend rights
according to the terms and conditions of the deposit agreement
entered into between The Bank of New York, Option and future
ADR holders;
-- An ADR gives US investors access to the Option shares through
the over-the-counter market on which ADRs are freely negotiable
in the US. The ADR ticker is OPNVY.

Share history in 2006-2008 on Euronext
2008

2007

2007

41 249 296

41 249 296

41 249 296

Year-end share price

1.90

5.61

10.30

Market capitalization
(million)

78

231

425

Number of shares
outstanding

Share price High

7.92
(Jan 3, 2008)

15.13
24.33
(Feb 15 2007) (Feb 23,2006)

Share price Low

1.62
(Dec 9, 2008)

5.21
(Oct 25 2007)

9.09
(Oct 6,2006)

82.66 %

82.90 %

82.90 %

Free float
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During 2008, a total of 33 106 725 shares were traded on Euronext
on 256 trading days, meaning an average for the year of nearly 129
323 shares per day.

Financial calendar
Option intends to release its quarterly financial information in 2009
on the following dates – before market hours:
1Q Results Thursday > 30 April, 2009
2Q Results Thursday > 30 July, 2009
3Q Results Thursday > 29 October, 2009
General Meeting of Shareholders 2009
> Thursday 30 April, 2009 at 10 AM
General Meeting of Shareholders 2010
> Friday 30 April, 2010 at 10 AM
For clarification concerning the information contained in this annual
report or for information about Option NV and about transparency
filings regarding declaration of interests of shares, please contact:
JP Ziegler
Chief Financial Officer
Gaston Geenslaan 14
B-3001 Leuven, Belgium
Phone: +32 (0)16 31 74 11
Fax: +32 (0)16 31 74 90
E-mail: investor@option.com

Page 79 of 85

Information Sheet by End 2008

NAME
FORM
ADDRESS
PHONE
FAX
E-Mail
WEBSITE
ENTERPRISE No.
VAT
ESTABLISHMENT DATE
DURATION
AUDITOR
FINANCIAL YEAR CLOSING
CAPITAL
NUMBER OF SHARES
ANNUAL MEETING
LISTING
DEPOSIT BANK
MEMBER OF INDEX

OTHER LABELS

OPTION NV
Limited Company as per Belgian Law
Gaston Geenslaan 14, B-3001 LEUVEN
+32(0)16 31 74 11
+32(0)16 31 74 90
investor@option.com
www.option.com
0 429 375 448
BE 429 375 448
July 3rd, 1986
Indefinite duration
Deloitte-Auditors represented by Mr. Geert Verstraeten in the absence of Mr. Leo Van Steenberge.
31 December
6 116 067,21 EUR
41 249 296
Last business day of April
Euronext - continumarktStock - Ordinary Stock - Continuous - compartment B - ticker OPTI
FORTIS
Next Economy
Next 150
Bel SmallMid
VLAM 21
Ethibel Pioneer
Europe 500
SRI Kempen

Information Sheet by End 2008

An electronic version of the Annual Report is also available, for information purposes only, via the internet on the website of Option (address:
www.option.com). Only the printed Annual Report, published in Belgium in accordance with the applicable rules and legislation is legally valid,
and Option takes no responsibility for the accuracy or correctness of the Annual Report available via the Internet. Other information on the
website of Option or on any other website does not form part of this Annual Report.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, statements containing the words “believes”,
“anticipates”, “expects”, “intends”, “plans”, “seeks”, “estimates”, “may”, “will”, and “continue” and similar expressions. Such forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors witch might cause the actual results, financial condition,
performance or achievements of Option, or industry results, to be materially different from any future results, performance, or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Given these uncertainties, the public is cautioned not to place any undue reliance
on such forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are made only as of the date of this Annual Report. Option expressly
disclaims any obligation to update any such forward-looking statements in this Annual Report to reflect any change in its expectations with
regard thereto or any change in events, conditions, or circumstances on witch any such statement is based, unless such statement is required
pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.

LANGUAGE OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT
Pursuant to Belgian Law, Option is required to prepare its Annual Report in Dutch. Option has also made an English language translation of this
Annual Report. In case of differences in interpretation between the English and Dutch versions of the Annual Report, the original Dutch version
shall prevail.
AVAILABILITY OF THE ANNUAL REPORT
The Annual Report is available to the public free of charge upon request to:
Option NV
Attention Investor Relations
Gaston Geenslaan 14
3001 Leuven, Belgium
Phone: +32(0)16 317 411
Fax: +32(0)16 317 490
E-mail: investor@option.com
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Financial Glossary

chronological Overview of Press Releases

BOOK VALUE PER SHARE

Total Shareholders’ equity divided by the number of weighted average number
of ordinary shares.

CASH FLOW PER SHARE

Net result plus non-cash charges such as depreciation and impairment loss
divided by number of weighted average number of ordinary shares.

EBIT
EBITDA
EPS
GEARING RATIO
NET CAPEX
NET FINANCIAL DEBT
SOLVENCY RATIO
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES

WORKING CAPITAL
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Earnings Before Interest and Taxes.
Profit from operations.
Profit from operations plus depreciation and amortization.
Earnings Per Share. Net result divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares.
Net debt divided by shareholders' equity
Acquisitions of property and equipment, intangible assets and the
expenditures on product development, minus proceeds from sale.
Non-current and current debts minus cash.
Shareholder's’ equity divided by total assets.
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the period, adjusted by
the number of shares cancelled, repurchased or issued during the period
multiplied by a time-weighting factor.
Current assets less current liabilities.

FIRST HALF 2008

SECOND HALF 2008

- Option to showcase new products at Mobile World Congress 2008
- 'iF' Product Design Award for Option's new iCON® 401 USB Modem
- Option announces world's fastest embedded wireless module: the
GTM382
- Option announces world's first quad-band HSPA data card: the
GT EXPRESS 401
- New products demonstrate Option's continued commitment to
'Simplexity'
- Option adds Unlimited Connection to Telenor's mobile broadband service
- Option enters Russian market with Vimpelcom
- GSMA award-winning wireless notebook incorporates Option embedded
module
- AT&T adds to HSUPA device lineup with two new LaptopConnect Cards
from Option
- Option selected by Qualcomm to collaborate on Gobi™ Wireless
Technology
- Asus selects Option for wireless broadband connectivity
- iCON® 225 adds wireless broadband and new services to Pioneer's Car
Navigation System
- Option announces Linux Connection Management Software for MIDs

- Option to nominate two new Board members
- Option unveils Compal as first MID customer
- Option ships HSPA ExpressCard designed exclusively for Vodafone
- Distribution channels select award winning Option iCON® 401 USB
modem
- AT&T and Option launch AT&T USBConnect Quicksilver
- Option to extend collaboration with Intel on wireless modules for Mobile
Internet Devices
- USI selects Option embedded wireless module for razor-thin Mobile
Internet Device
- Major French operator launches Option-connected Mobile Internet
Devices (MIDs)
- Option delivers new USB modem for Vodafone
- Option and Microsoft collaborate on Windows 7
- Option to offer USB wireless modem in the UK
- Italian operator offers Option-connected Mobile Internet Device
- Option appoints Philippe Rogge to new role of Chief Operating Officer
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